Unit 10 Langley Business Court, Beedon Newbury, Berkshire, RG20 8RY

AAW Control Systems Limited

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4











### Introduction

WebREACT is a PC-based supervisory control and data acquisition system that enables you to monitor sensor inputs from a practically unlimited number of different areas and devices on a single PC. It will raise alarms if any sensor input is outside of acceptable limits, and keeps a full log of historical data to meet your reporting and auditing needs.

### Contents

Accessing Your WebREACT System4
Logging On to WebREACT5
Viewing Your Locations and Facilities7
Viewing the Site Status Page8
Viewing the <i>Room Picture</i> Page 10
Input Configuration Settings 13
Viewing the Sensor Graphs 15
Viewing the Averages Report 20
Viewing the Compare Trends Report
Viewing the Alarm History
Alarm History Events
Recognising when WebREACT is in Alarm
Acknowledging an Alarm
QRS: Acknowledging an Alarm
Understanding the Confirmation Message when Acknowledging an Alarm 37
Understanding the Alarm History when an Alarm is Acknowledged 38
Recognising when Servicing is in Progress/Overdue
Putting a Point into Servicing Mode
Scheduling the Next Service
Testing a Point on Your System 48
QRS: Testing a Point on Your System
Adding a New Procedural Qualification (PQ) 51
QRS: Adding a New PQ55
Viewing Your Procedural Qualifications (PQs)
Viewing Your Operational Qualifications (OQs)
Viewing Your Installation Qualifications (IQs)

WEB: www.aawcs.co.uk EMAIL: aaw@aawcs.co.uk TEL: 01635 248589 FAX: 01635 897591

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

Adding a New Installation Qualification	62
Viewing Your Calibration Certificates	66
Viewing Your Temperature Mapping Reports	68
Adding a New User	70
Changing a User's Password	72
Hardware Maintenance	75

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4



# Accessing Your WebREACT System

WebREACT is a web-enabled system that can be accessed via any PC that has Internet Explorer and a connection to the Internet.

### 1. Open Internet Explorer

You will need to be running Internet Explorer version 7 or 8.

# 2. Type in the address (URL) for your WebREACT system and press Enter on the keyboard.

Once your WebREACT system has been set up, you will be given a unique URL for accessing it. It will probably be worth making this your home page so that you are taken to it directly when you open Internet Explorer.

Cverview - Windows Internet Explorer		
CO v E http://192.168.1.99/Plan.aspx?plan=overview.svg	🗸 47 🗙 🚼 Google	- م

3. If required, enter your network user name and password and click **OK** 

Depending on your security setup, you may be prompted for a network user name and password. These should have been issued to you by your IT Services department.



### 4. Wait for the *Overview* page to be displayed.

Depending on the setup of your WebREACT system this will either be a map of Great Britain showing the various locations being monitored, or a floor plan of the particular facility being monitored.



User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

# <sup>1</sup>Logging On to WebREACT

In order to perform certain functions you will first need to log on as a specific user.

### 1. Click **Click to logon** in the menu bar.

The User Log On page will be displayed.

				1.65				
/	99/Plan.aspx?plan=overviev	w.svg		÷ 47	🗙 😽 Googl	e	م	-
orites 🏉 Overview				<u>ه</u> -		arrian states and a set a	▼ Tools ▼ Tools ▼	**
	Overview	► Alarms	▶ Reports	▶ Print	Help 🔸	10:49 14/6/201	2	
🏉 User Log C	On - Windows Internet Explo	orer						
<b>O -</b>	E http://192.168.1.99/Lo	igOn.aspx?ReturnUrl=/Pla	in.aspx?plan=overview.s	/g	-	😽 🗙 😽 Google		,
😭 Favorites	🏉 User Log On				6	• 🗟 • 🖻 🖶 •	▼ <u>P</u> age ▼ <u>S</u> afety ▼	T <u>o</u> ols 🕶 🔞 🕶
Click to lo	gon 🔸 C	Overview 🔰	Alarms 🕨	Reports	Print	Help 10	:57 14/06/2012	
			Unit 10 Lan V Uni Versic User Password	gley Business Court fords End, Beedon, Newbury, Berkshire, RG20 BRY ted Kingdom. .n: Ver: 4.4.2.2	t.			

2. Type in your user name and password and click Log on You will be returned to the page from where you initiated the logon process. Note: The name of the logged-on user will be shown in the menu bar.

Image: Part (1322381.98) Log0: Log	meex.											orer	User Log On - Windows Internet Eq
Avrontes     Buse Log On     Overview     Alarms     Reports     Print     Help     11:57     26/9/2012     Control Systems     Avid Control	P			-	Google	×	• 47			verview.svg	aspx?plan=ov	ogOn.aspx?ReturnUrl±/Plan.a	🕒 🕞 🔻 👔 http://192.168.1.99/1
Click to logon Overview Alarms Reports Print Help 11:57 28/9/2012	•	Tgols 🔹 🔞	<u>S</u> afety ▼	<u>P</u> age •	🗆 🖶 •		合 •						🚖 Favorites 🛛 🍘 User Log On
Control Systems AWC cated systems to AWC cated systems to Worlds Erid, Beson, Newbory, Beson, Newbory, Beson, Warshow, Beson, Be			2	26/9/201	11:57 2		Help	Print	Reports	Alarms		Overview	Click to logon
Control Systems AAV Control Systems AAV Control Systems Control Systems AAV Control Systems Readow, Re													
AAV Control Systems AAV Control Systems Los Un 10 Lappier Business Court, We Bestan, Bersahar, Under Kingdom, Version: Ver. 44.7.0 User Passeon									AAW				
Control Systems AwY Control Systems Ld. Unit 10 Largely: Basiness Cont, Wrotes Sin, Beedon, Beedon, Bershine, United Kingdom. Version: Ver: 44.7.0 User Password Password													
Unit 10 Langley Business Court, Window Sin, Newbury, Bershaw, Kozo Algen, User aw Password aw Password aw									Control Systems	AAW			
Vionis End, Beedon, Berabone, Rg3 derv Utertek Kingdom, Version: Ver 4.4.7.0 User aw Pas sword									angley Business Court.	Unit 10			
Newbury Beratare, RG20 BRY Unded Kingdom. Version: Ver. 44.7.0 User Password Password									Worlds End, Beedon				
Riccia Sary United Kingdom. Version: Ver 4 7.0 User aaw Password									Newbury,				
Under Kingdom. Varabon: Ver 4.4.7.0 User aw Password Article Company									RG20 BRY				
Version: Ver 4 4 7 0 User asw Password									Jnited Kingdom.				
User aaw Password									sion: Ver: 4.4.7.0	Ve			
Password Loop									33W	Ligar			
(Loop)										Password			
(Logen)													
									Log an				
~~									2				



Cverview - Windows Internet Explorer	
🚱 🔵 🔻 🔊 http://192.168.1.99/Plan.aspx?plan=overview.svg	🔸 44 🗙 🚱 Google 🖉 🗸
👷 Favorites 🖉 Overview	🚡 🕶 🗟 👻 🖃 🖶 👻 Page 🕶 Safety 🕶 Tools 🕶 🚱 🕶
AAW Controls Ltd. → Overview → Alarms → Reports → Configuration	→ Service → Print Help → 12:01 13/7/2012 A

Name of logged-on user

AAW Control Systems Limited

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

### Viewing Your Locations and Facilities

WebREACT offers an intuitive interface for viewing the locations and facilities that you're monitoring. As a general rule, if you want to look at a particular location or facility in more detail then simply click on it.

Tip: the cursor will change from an arrow  $\fbox$  to a hand  $\clubsuit$  when it is positioned over something on the page that is active for you to click on.



User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4



2. To expand or collapse a particular branch of the tree i.e. to see more or less detail, click on the  $\mathbb{H}/\mathbb{H}$  symbol next to the title of the branch.

The symbol will change from a  $\blacksquare$  to a  $\blacksquare$  and vice versa depending on whether the branch is collapsed or expanded.

Curdling

20.8

1.

#### **AAW Control Systems Limited** WEB: www.aawcs.co.uk EMAIL: aaw@aawcs.co.uk User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4 TEL: 01635 248589 FAX: 01635 897591 Overview Bridgwater - Dairy Chill Store 2.2 Trolley Returns 4.3 Overview Bridgwater - Dairy Chill Store 2.2 Chill Store Average 2.2 Chill Store S1 3.5

# 3. To enter a room - for example to acknowledge an alarm, click the name of the room.

3.2

-0.1

4.3

The *Room Picture* page for that room will be displayed.

Chill Store S2

Chill Store S3

Trolley Returns

Note: If you've expanded a branch so that it shows the individual inputs within a room, then to enter the room you need to click the name of the room not the name of any of the inputs.



User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4



# Viewing the Room Picture Page

The *Room Picture* page provides a detailed overview of a single room or unit of equipment. It allows you to quickly see the current sensor readings and alarm condition for that room/unit, the current configuration settings such as the alarm limits and delays, and a graphical trace of the day's sensor readings.

# 1. To view the *Room Picture* page for a particular room or unit of equipment, click into it from the *Overview* page.

Alternatively you can access the *Room Picture* page from the *Site Status* page or via the *Overview* menu.



2.

The *Room Picture* page shows a thermometer as a visual representation of the current sensor reading and the high and low alarm limits.



When a sensor reading first goes outside of the acceptable limits, a timer symbol is shown next to the thermometer to indicate that the alarm delay\* is counting down.

\* Each point is configured with an alarm delay which defines how long the sensor reading needs to be outside of the acceptable limits before the alarm is triggered. This delay helps to avoid the system being oversensitive to momentary temperature fluctuations.

If the sensor reading does not return to an acceptable value within the alarm delay period, then the alarm will be triggered and the thermometer will change to orange to indicate an unacknowledged alarm.

When the alarm is acknowledged the thermometer will change to yellow until the sensor reading returns to an acceptable value and the alarm clears, or until the alarm repeat period elapses and the alarm is re-triggered.



Alarm delay counting down Unacknowledged

alarm



**AAW Control Systems Limited** 

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

- Acknowledged alarm
- 3. The *Room Picture* page shows a photograph of the actual room/unit being monitored, on top of which is superimposed the current reading from each sensor.





If a sensor reading is outside of acceptable limits and the alarm has been triggered but not yet acknowledged, then the display of that reading will flash orange to indicate an unacknowledged alarm.

When the alarm is acknowledged the display of the sensor reading will change to yellow until it returns to an acceptable value and the alarm clears.







Reading within acceptable limits

Unacknowledged alarm

Acknowledged alarm

4. If a room is being monitored by multiple sensors, then you can select the particular sensor that you want to view/modify using the drop-down list.

Note: This does not change the sensors that are shown on the sensor graphs. For more information on using the sensor graphs, see Viewing the Sensor Graphs on page 15.



5. The configuration settings for the selected input/alarm are shown.

Click Next to see the next group of settings.

If your access level permits, you can change the configuration settings.

**Note:** If you change any of the configuration settings you need to click the *Update* button to save them/apply them to the system. The *Update* button will flash red to remind you to do this.



## Input Configuration Settings

The following table summarises the purpose of the different configuration settings that control each input.

Setting:	Description:
Alarm enable	Controls whether the input will trigger an alarm if the sensor reading goes outside the allowed limits.
	Note: It is highly recommended that your alarms are enabled at all times.
	Note: Disabling an alarm will disable the alarms on all the inputs in the group.
Sensor enable	Controls whether the input is taking/logging readings.
	Note: Disbaling a sensor requires the super-user access level.
Action	Controls the actions that will take place in the event of an alarm being triggered.
Alarm from Alarm until	Shows the times for today during which the input will trigger an alarm.
	00:00:00 to 00:00:00 means all of the day.
	12:00:00 to 12:00 :00 means none of the day.
	<b>Note:</b> This setting cannot be changed directly from the <i>Room Picture</i> page, but is instead controlled through the <i>Shift</i> that is associated with the selected <i>Alarm Action</i> .
High limit	Controls the maximum value allowed for the input before a high alarm is triggered.
Low limit	Controls the minimum value allowed for the input before a low alarm is triggered.
Alarm delay	Controls the length of time that the sensor reading needs to remain outside the allowed limts before an alarm is triggered.
	This delay helps to avoid the system being over-sensitive to momentary temperature fluctuations.
Alarm repeat	Controls the length of time that the sensor reading can remain outside the allowed limits after the initial alarm has been acknowledged before the alarm is triggered again.
Averaging factor	
Flat line count	Controls the length of time (in seconds) that can elapse since a sensor's last reading was received before a "Flatline" alarm is triggered to indicate a loss of communication with that sensor.
Log alarm limits	Controls how often the alarm limits are plotted on the sensor graphs.
	Usually the alarm limits remain unchanged so do not need to be plotted too frequently.
Inhibit enable	
Pulldown	



Dial-out:	
Email : Alarm Email	
Report: Delivery Report	
SMS:	
Service	Controls whether the alarm is temporarily inhibited whilst the sensor is being cleaned/serviced.
Duration	Controls the length of time that the alarm is temporarily inhibited for.
	This time will begin when the <i>Service</i> setting is changed from "Off" to "On".
Next	Specifies the next date when the sensor should be serviced.
	On this date the system will add an event to the <i>Alarm List</i> to alert you that the next service is now overdue.
Days between services	Enables the system to automatically update the next service date after each service is completed.
Input name	
Address	Indicates whether the input is wired (I/O) or wireless (IT). If wireless,

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

### Viewing the Sensor Graphs

WebREACT provides an interactive graphical display of the data collected by each sensor.

1. To view a sensor graph, go to the *Room View* page for that sensor.

Res and and					
Property	Chill Room 7			G . U	Code . Tutels . idint
wcona	ors Ltd. Over	NOW Alarms	Reports Conngu	razion Service Print Hel	p 14:04 14/0/2012
of Children	r Ar • Alarmi Ola	ion Crists		and the second second	
<u>.</u>	Alarm enable	Ves -		STATE OF TAXABLE	-
	Dension enable	105 -		and a second second	-
31	Action	Action 1 •			A COLUMN
-	Harm Both				Sec. 1
1	Alarm unbi				and the second s
1	Contract (Mark)				Contraction of the local division of the loc
-		Opcare		41	100
				4.1	and the second se
u range 💌	< 13 Jun + 2012 -	13 Jun + 2012 1	Retesh. Futpage.		
D14	fon 7 Air				
-					
_					
_					
10					
		3 3 6 6	2 A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A		
A	AAAA	AAAA	1 1 1 1 1		A A A
10	AAAA.	AAAA	AAAI	AAAAA	AAA
10	AAAA,	AAA)	A A A I		1 A A
10		$\mathbb{W}$	AAA/		ΛΛΛ,
10	$\mathbb{N}$		MM		$ \land \land \land \land $
10 5			MM		$\mathbb{A}$
10	MM	MM			$\mathbb{N}$
10 6		MM			$\mathbb{N}$
10 8 0	MM				$\mathbb{N}$
10 5 0	MM				$\mathbb{A}^{\mathbb{A}}$
10 5 0					

2. To view a sensor graph full screen, click the Full page button.



3. If there are multiple sensor traces shown on the same graph, then you can show/hide particular traces by clicking on the name of the sensor.

Note: You can double double click on the name of a sensor to show just that trace.



# Alternatively, click the left and right arrows on either side of the date range to move the date range forwards/backwards.

Note: The sensor graph will be updated automatically i.e. you do not need to click the *Refresh* button.

### AAW Control Systems Limited

#### User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

13 May 🔻 2012 - 13 May 🔻 2012 🔰

Click the left and right arrows to move the date range forwards/ backwards.

The dates will be moved forwards/backwards according to the duration of the current date range.

For example, if the current date range is for a single day, then clicking an arrow will move the dates forwards/backwards by a single day.

If the current date range is for 7 days, then clicking an arrow will move the dates forwards/backwards by 7 days.

5. To see the exact measurement for a given point on the graph, double click on the graph at the point you're interested in.

A vertical line will be displayed at that point with the exact date and time shown in a box at the bottom of the line and the measurement recorded shown next to the sensor name at the top of the graph.



You can "nudge" the line forwards/backwards by clicking the arrows to either side of the time and date box.

The measurements shown next to the sensor names will be updated automatically.

How far the line is nudged will depend on how "zoomed in" you are..





7. To "zoom in" on a part of the graph, click in one corner of the area you're interested in - a right angle will be displayed at that point.

Click in the diagonally opposite corner of the area you're interested in - a second right angle will be displayed.

Finally click anywhere within the area enclosed by the two right angles to "zoom in".

Note: If required, you can zoom in repeatedly to get to the information/view that you need.



be zoomed into.

## AAW Control Systems Limited

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4



- 8. After zooming in on the graph, you can then scroll the view using the arrows to either side of the graph and underneath.
- 9. To "zoom out" of a graph, click the zoom out button in the bottom right corner of the graph.





# Viewing the Averages Report

The *Averages* report provides an hour-by-hour summary of the average reading recorded for each room.

The report also shows the high and low limits for each room, the highest (Max) and lowest (Min) average value recorded during the period being reported on, and the current value being recorded.

### 1. Go to the *Reports* menu and click Averages

The Average List page will be displayed showing the average values of today's sensor readings.



2. If you want to view the average sensor readings from an earlier period, then you can adjust the date settings at the top of the page.

The report will be refreshed automatically.

Verage bit - Vindows internet Explore     E http://192.168.1.99/Report/AverageList.aspx	
Favorites Deverage List	🚵 🔻 🔝 👻 🚍 🖶 👻 Bage 🕶 Safety 🕶 Tools 🕶 🕢
W Controls Ltd. → Overview → Alarms → Reports → Configuration	) → Service → Print Help → 9:37 26/6/2012

### AAW Control Systems Limited

#### User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4



The average values are calculated from all the readings recorded during each hour-long period. For example, the value shown in the 7 column is the average of all the readings recorded between 07:00 and 07:59

Where there are multiple sensors monitoring a particular room, the average values are calculated from all the readings recorded by all the sensors.

A value shown in **blue** indicates that the average value was below the low limit.

A value shown in **red** indicates that the average value was above the high limit.

A value shown in orange indicates that the average value was outside the acceptable limits therefore triggering an alarm, but the alarm has not yet been acknowledged.

A value shown in grey indicates that the average value was for a time that is outside of the room's alarm schedule i.e. when an alarm would not have been triggered even if the average value was outside the acceptable limits.

### User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4



# Viewing the Compare Trends Report

The *Compare Trends* report enables you to compare the sensor traces for two different rooms alongside each other - either on the same graph or as two separate graphs.

### 1. Go to the *Reports* menu and click Compare Trends

The *Trend Compare* page will be displayed showing the sensor traces for the first two rooms (as ordered on the *Room Status* page).



# 2. Use the drop-down lists to change the rooms that are being compared.

If the room you select is being monitored by multiple sensors, then the graph will show a separate trace for each sensor.

🕒 🔾 🗢 🙋 http://192.168.	1.99/Report/TrendCompare.aspx			🝷 😽 🗙 🚰 Google		ρ.
Favorites 🏾 🍘 Trend Com	pare			🗄 • 🖻 • 🖻 🖷		T <u>o</u> ols 🕶 🔞 🕶
AW Controls Ltd.	Overview Alarms	Reports	Configuration	Service Print H	lelp 15:08 26/0	6/2012
Compare Ambient	and Chill Room 1	<ul> <li>Single graph</li> </ul>	✓ Auto Range ▼	26 Jun - 2012 - 26	Jun 🔻 2012 🔰 🚺	Refresh
Chill Chill Room 1	mbient		1 1		1 1	



### 4. If required, use the drop down list to change the vertical scale.

The system will automatically set the horizontal scale according to the rooms that are being viewed. If required, however, you can change this scale to one of the other options in the drop-down list.

🕒 🔾 🔻 🙋 http://192.1/	58.1.99/Report/TrendCompare.aspx			• 47 X	Soogle Google		Q
🚖 Favorites 🛛 🏉 Trend Co	mpare			🖞 • 🔊	* 🖃 🖶 * Bag	ge ▼ <u>S</u> afety ▼ T <u>o</u> ols ▼	0-
AW Controls Ltd.	Overview Alarms	Reports → Co	onfiguration	Service	Print Help	7:57 27/6/201	2
ompare Ambient	▼ and Chill Room 1	<ul> <li>Single graph</li> </ul>	Auto Range 👻	< 26 Jun 🕶	2012 - 26 Jun	<ul> <li>2012 &gt; Refresh</li> </ul>	
Chill Room 1	Amblent		Auto Range 0 to 10				-
			2 to 10				

5. If required, adjust the date settings at the top of the page to compare the rooms over a particular date period.

The graph(s) will be refreshed automatically.



🕒 🔾 🔻 🔊 http://192.1	168.1.99/Report/TrendCompare.aspx?p	lan=overview.svg		- 47 ×	Google		ρ.
🚖 Favorites 🛛 🏉 Trend C	ompare			<u>à</u> • 6	) - 🗆 🖶 - B	age ▼ <u>S</u> afety ▼ T <u>o</u> ols ▼	0-
AW Controls Ltd.	Overview Alarms	▶ Reports ▶ 0	Configuration	Service	Print Help	16:13 26/06/2012	2
Compare Ambient	and Chill Room 1	<ul> <li>Single graph</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Auto Range</li> </ul>	< 26 Jun -	2012 - 26 Jun	▼ 2012 > Refresh	1

Tip: You can also zoom into the graph(s) and see the exact values for a particular point as described for the sensor graphs - see Viewing the Sensor Graphs on page 15.

If you are viewing separate graphs, then zooming in on one of those graphs does not automtically zoom in on the other. You will need to do this manually if required.

#### User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

### Viewing the Alarm History

The *Alarm History* page provides a chronological log of the events that have occurred on the system. This includes alarms, alarm acknowledgments, and configuration changes.

# 1. To view the Alarm History, go to the *Alarms* menu and click **History**

The Alarm List page will be displayed, showing all events for today.

TE http://192.108.1.99/Events/Ala					
A Emeridae de al	rms.aspx/view=history&riot=riot_1&gr	oup=1	*  */ ×   *	Google	Cofety a T
Alarm List			±∎• 51 •	🔄 📺 👻 Page 🕶	Safety ♥ 1
AAW Controls Ltd. Overview	/ ► Alarms ► Reports	<ul> <li>Configuration</li> </ul>	Service F	Print Help 12	1:01 13/07
Ali Alarms - < 13 J	une • 2012 - 13 June • 2012	Query Graph	Comment Refresh		
Ack Time Point		Alarm		Value L	
13/06/2012 11:69:13 Chill Bo	om 1 Outside Limits	Outside Limits		21.7	10
13/06/2012 11:56:47	our of the second	000100 01110	AAW Controls Ltd.	All sensors re	e-calibrated
13/06/2012 10:30:18 Chill Sto	re Average Outside Limits	Outside Limits			
13/06/2012 10:25:47 Chill Sto	re Average Outside Limits	Outside Limits		Thermostat tur	rned up by 1
13/06/2012 10:25:47 Chill Sto	re Average Outside Limits	Outside Limits	AAW Controls Ltd.		
13/06/2012 10:23:12 Chill Sto	re Average Outside Limits	Outside Limits		Ack by NAA	: 13/6/2012
V 13/06/2012 10:23:12 Chill Sto	re Average Outside Limits	Outside Limits		1.9	2
13/06/2012 06:52:07 Stock Fr	dge Stock Fridge Air	Stock Fridge Air	AAW Controls Ltd.		
13/06/2012-06:51:23 Stock En	dge Stock-Fridge Air	Stock Fridge Air	AAW Controls Ltd.	Fridge doo	r left open, d
13/06/2012 06:50:47 Stock Fr	dge Stock Fridge Air	Stock Fridge Air			
13/06/2012 06:48:36 Stock Fr	dge Stock Fridge Air	Stock Fridge Air		Ack by NAA	13/6/2012
V 13/06/2012 06:48:36 Stock Fr	dge Stock Fridge Air	Stock Fridge Air		6.3	6 1
13062012 102547 Chill 50     13062012 102547 Chill 50     13062012 102547 Chill 50     13062012 102547 Chill 50     13062012 102512 Chill 50     13062012 102512 Chill 50     13062012 005507 Shock Fr     13062012 005517 Shock Fr     13062012 0056123 Shock Fr     13062012 0056127 Shock Fr     13062012 005712 Shock Fr     13062012 Shock Fr     1306201	e Average Outside Limits e Average Outside Limits te Average Outside Limits te Average Outside Limits dge Stock Fridge Air dge Stock Fridge Air	Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Stock Fridge Air Stock Fridge Air	AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd.	Thermostat tur Ack by NAA 1.9 Fridge doo	rni k 1

2. To filter the list of alarms/events to a particular room or facility, use the drop down list.

The list of alarms/events will be updated automatically.

Alarm List - Windows Internet I	Explorer						
🕒 🔍 🗢 🖻 http://192.168.1	1.99/Events/Alarms.aspx?view:	=history&riot=riot_1&gro	oup=1	🛨 😽 🗙 🛃 Go	ogle		\$
🚖 Favorites 🛛 🏀 Alarm List				👌 • 🗟 • 🗆	🖶 👻 Page	e ▼ <u>S</u> afety ▼	Tools • 🔞 •
AAW Controls Ltd.	Overview Aları	ms Reports	Configuration	Service Prin	t Help 🕨	12:01 13	/07/2012
All alarms	👗 < 13 June 🕶 2012	- 13 June - 2012	> Query Graph	Comment Refresh			
All alarms Chill Store Chill Room 1	Point		Alarm	User	Value	Limit	Status
Chill Room 2	Chill Room 1	Outside Limits	Outside Limits		21.7	10	highalm
Chill Room 3				AAW Controls Ltd.	All sense	ors re-calibra	ted by AAW
Freezer 1	Chill Store Average	Outside Limits	Outside Limits				lowret
Sample Fridge	Chill Store Average	Outside Limits	Outside Limits		Thermost	at turned up	by 1 degree
Stock Fridge	Chill Store Average	Outside Limits	Outside Limits	AAW Controls Ltd.			Ack



### AAW Control Systems Limited

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

4.2. Enter the word or phrase you want to search for, select whether you want the search to be case sensitive, and click **Filter alarms** 

The list of alarms/events will be updated to only show those that contain the required text.



#### 5. To add a comment to a sensor graph, click the *Graph* button:

5.1. Filter the alarm history to the relevant room/alarms/events, then click Graph

A Graph & Comment box will be displayed showing the sensor traces for all the rooms currently listed in the Alarm History.

**Note:** You can only add a trace comment to one graph at a time. Before you use the *Graph* function you may therefore want to filter the *Alarm History* so that it only shows the alarms/events for a single room. This can be done using the drop-down list of rooms/the date and time range/the *Query* function.

Alternatively you can select the partcular graph that you want to add the trace commentto by clicking/double-clicking on the names of the sensors.

🟉 Alarm List - Windows Internet	Explorer						
3 - E http://192.168	.1.99/Events/Alarms.	aspx?view=histor;			• 4 ×	Soogle	ۍ م
🙀 Favorites 🛛 🎉 Alarm List					👌 • 🔊	• 🖃 🖶 • Pa	ige ▼ Safety ▼ Tools ▼ 🔞 ▼ 🊿
AAW Controls Ltd.	Overview	Alarms	Reports	Configuration	Service	Print Help	▶ 10:37 15/7/2012
Anglesey - Meat Production	- C 13 July	• 2012 - 13	July 🔻 2012	> Query Graph C	omment Refre	sh	
				Graph & Com	nment		
			13 July	✓ 2012 00:00:40 - 13	July 🔻 2012	13:12:16	
				Rm 7 Chil Rm 7 Ar	Ldrg By A	Refresh	

#### 5.2. If required, amend the date/time range.

By default the date/time range that the sensor traces are shown for will be from the earliest alarm/event currently shown in the *Alarm History* to the latest alarm/event currently shown in the *Alarm History*.

If required, you can change the date/time range manually by clicking in the date/time boxes and amending/selecting the values as required. You will then need to click the *Refresh* button to update the sensor traces.

Alternatively you can zoom in to a section of the graph in the same way as on the main sensor garphs - see Viewing the Sensor Graphs on page 15.



5.3. If required, select the single input that you want to add the trace comment to.

Note: You can only add a trace comment to one graph at a time. If there is more than one sensor trace shown on the graph, then you will need to select the one input that you want to add the comment to.

To select a single input, double click on the name of that input to hide all the other traces. Alternatively you can single click on the name of an input to show/hide that particular trace.



5.4. Double click on the graph at the point you want to insert the comment.

A vertical line will be displayed at that point with the exact date and time shown in a box at the bottom of the line and the measurement recorded shown next to the sensor name at the top of the graph.

If required you can "nudge" the line forwards/backwards by clicking the arrows to either side of the time and date box.



5.5. Enter the comment and select the required orientation of the text.

<u></u>	18.8.6	
Sensor tested by AAW	Comment	Refresh
	220	

#### 5.6. Click Comment

After a few seconds a confirmation message will be displayed stating "1 comment(s) added" and the graph will be refreshed to show the comment.

Note: When the graph is refreshed it will show all the sensor traces again, not just the one you selected in step 5.3 above.

### AAW Control Systems Limited

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4



# 6. To add a general comment onto the system click the *Comment* button:

Entering appropriate comments adds further information to the system which can be invaluable when looking back over your alarm history.

Tip: If you filter the *Alarm History* to a particular room or control unit before adding a comment, then the comment will be assigned to that room/control unit.

#### 6.1. Click Comment

Alarm
 Alarm
 Fave
 Fave
 AAW (

An Add Comment page will be displayed.

Vindows Internet Expl	lorer								
http://192.168.1.99	/Events/Alarms.aspx?view=I	history&plan=overview.svg		•	4 × 3	Google		۰ م	
🏉 Alarm List				6	• 🔊 •	🖃 🖶 🝷 Page	• ▼ <u>S</u> afety ▼	Tgols ▼ 🔞 ▼	
ols Ltd. 🔹 🕨	Overview  Alar	ms ▶ Reports ▶	Configuration	n ⊧Se	rvice 🕨	Print Help	15:46 1	/7/2012	
	I July ♥ 2012	- 1 July • 2012 2	duely Graph	Comment	Keilesti K	J			
Add Comme	ent - Windows Internet Exp	lorer							
	http://192.168.1.99/Even	nts/AddComment.aspx				• + ×	Google 😽		م
👷 Favorites	Comment 🏉					👌 🔹 🔊	• 🗆 🌐 •	Page ▼ Safety ▼	T <u>o</u> ols ▼ 🔞 ▼
				omment	^ Pi	edefined			
					-				
		A	dd comment Ad	d comment to	predefined li	st 🗐			
К									

6.2. Enter the required comment and click Add comment

After a few seconds a confirmation message will be displayed stating "1 comment(s) added".



**Tip:** If appropriate, you can select a pre-defined comment from the drop-down list. The selected comment will then be displayed in the main comment box allowing you to amend it or add further information to it as required.

Add Comment - Windows Internet Explorer								• <mark>•</mark>	3
CO v Attp://192.168.1.99/Events/AddComment.aspx			+ 4 ×	Soogle				٩	
🚖 Favorites 🏾 🍘 Add Comment			👌 • 🔊	• 🖃 🌐	▼ <u>P</u> age ▼	<u>S</u> afety ▼	T <u>o</u> ols ▼	0-	
AAW Controls Ltd.   ▶ Overview   ▶ Alarm	is ▶ Reports ▶ Cont	figuration	Service	Print	Help 🕨	16:23	1/7/201	2	Ī
	Comment								
Annual sensor calibrations completed by AAW Control Systems L	Comment	^ Annu	al sensor calib	rations comp	leted by AAV	N Control S	Systems I	td 👻	
Annual sensor calibrations completed by AAW Control Systems L Subsequent alarms are due to the sensors being removed to am	Comment td bient area for testing.	Annu Prede	al sensor calib fined	rations comp	leted by AAV	// Control S	Systems I	td	
Annual sensor calibrations completed by AAW Control Systems I Subsequent alarms are due to the sensors being removed to am	Comment td bient area for testing.	Annu Prede Annua	al sensor calib fined Il sensor calib	rations comp	leted by AAV eted by AAV	W Control S	Systems I Systems L	tđ v	100

**Tip:** You can add the current comment to the list of pre-defined comments by selecting (ticking) the *Add comment to predefined list* box prior to clicking the *Add comment* button.

Add comment Add comment to predefined list

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

### Alarm History Events

The Alarm History will typically include the following events.

Status:	Description:
lowret	A sensor reading returned to an acceptable value before the low alarm that it triggered had been acknowledged.
highret	A sensor reading returned to an acceptable value before the high alarm that it had triggered had been acknowledged.
ack	An alarm was acknowledged.
clr	An acknowledged alarm was cleared when the sensor reading returned to an acceptable value.
highalm	A sensor reading rose above its high limit for long enough to trigger an alarm.
lowalm	A sensor reading dropped below it
=>	A configuration setting was changed.
	Note: " indicates that the setting was empty prior to the change. For example, Duration " => 00:30:00
Service overdue	Detail will give the name of the point

### User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4



## Recognising when WebREACT is in Alarm

If a facility or item of equipment is found to be operating outside of its acceptable limits, then WebREACT will go into alarm. For example, if a fridge is supposed to be operating between  $2^{\circ}C$  and  $6^{\circ}C$ , but a temperature of  $7^{\circ}C$  is recorded.

WebREACT will also go into alarm if it loses communication with a sensor or other hardware unit such as a RIOT or SCUFFLE.

### Flashing Orange - Unacknowledged Alarm

If a new alarm is triggered, or an alarm that has previously been acknowledged is repeated (due to the alarm condition persisting), then the menu bar and the location/ facility/piece of equipment that is in alarm will flash orange.



### Yellow - Acknowledged Alarm

If an alarm has been acknowledged but the facility or item of equipment continues to operate outside of its acceptable limits, then the menu bar and the location/facility/ piece of equipment that is in alarm will be shown in yellow.



1.

### AAW Control Systems Limited

#### User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

## <sup>'</sup>Acknowledging an Alarm

### Go to the *Room Picture* page for the point that is in alarm.

You can click into the required *Room Picture* from the *Overview* page, or alternatively access it from the *Site Status* page or via the *Overview* menu.

This will enable you to see exactly which area/item of equipment is in alarm so that it can be investigated and resolved.



### 2. Click Alarms in the menu bar.

The *Alarm List* will be displayed showing any events that have occurred against the particular point during the last 7 days.

This should include the alarm that you're wanting to acknowledge.

<ul> <li>http://192.168.1.99/RoomPicture/</li> </ul>	AndMeter.aspx?riot=riot_1&group=8		🝷 🍫 🗙 🛃 Google		• م	]
tes 🏾 🏉 Chill Store			👌 • 🛯 • 🗆 🖶		γ • T <u>o</u> ols • 🕢 • <sup>≫</sup>	
ontrols Ltd. • Overview	Alarma Reports	Configuration	Service Print	Help > 14:03	19/6/2012	
I Store Average  Alarm Outside Lii Alarm enable Sensor enable Yes	Historr Historr Retrie 'e Recent Log	dist.			1	
🖉 Alarm List - Windows Inte	met Explorer					
🕒 🗢 🖉 http://192	168.1.99/Events/Alarms.aspx?riot=riot_1	&group=8	•	🔸 🗙 😽 Goo	gle	Q
🙀 Favorites 🏾 🏀 Alarm L	List		ć		🖶 💌 Page 🕶 Safety	Tools      ♥      O     ♥     O     ♥
AAW Controls Ltd.	Overview      Alarms	Reports → Conf	iguration 🔹 Ser	vice Print	Help 12:01 1	3/07/2012
Ack Time	Point	Alarm	User	Value	Limit	Status *
13/06/2012 11:54:47	7 Chill Store Chill Bog	m 7 Chill Boom		12.5	12	biobalm



Tip: If you can't see the alarm you want to acknowledge, then go to the *Alarms* menu and click **Retrieve Recent Log** 

The *Retrieve Recent Log* page will be displayed. A progress bar is shown and will indicate when the requested log has been retrieved.

🏉 Alarm List - Wind	dows Internet Explo	orer								• X •	
30 - eh	nttp:// <b>192.168.1.99</b> /	Events/Alarms.as	x?riot=riot_1&group=8			• + ×	Gor	ogle		۰ م	
🙀 Favorites 🛛 👔	Alarm List					🟠 • 🖻	🗆	🖶 👻 <u>P</u> age 🕶	Safety ▼ Tools	• @• "	
AAW Controls	Ltd. C	verview 🕨	Alarms Repor	ts 🕨 🤇	Configuration	Service	Print	Help → 12	:01 13/07/20	12 ^	
Chill Store	•	Query Graph	Summary History								
Ack Time			Retrieve Recent L	.og <sup>arm</sup>					Stat	tus 🗠	
			Į								
	🏉 Retrieve Rec	ent Log - Window	s Internet Explorer								
	0.	http://192.168	1.99/Events/LogRetrieveRe	cent.aspx				🝷 🍫 🗙 🔮	Google		Q
	🚖 Favorites	CRetrieve Rev	ent Log					🗄 • 🖻 •	🖃 🖶 🔻 Pag	ge 🔻 Safety 🕇	r T <u>o</u> ols ▼ @▼
	AAW Contro	ols Ltd.	Overview Al	arms	Reports	Configuration	• • S	Service 🕨 P	rint Help	10:12 12	2/07/2012
	Retrieve recen Note: RiotStatio	t RIOT Logs. Pro on will not be retri	gress	the select	ted RIOT while you	are retrieving RIOT lo	gs on this	page.			

### 3. Select the alarm you want to acknowledge.

Click the acknowledge (Ack) box for the alarm you want to acknowledge.

This will display the Acknowledge Alarm page.



4.

### AAW Control Systems Limited

#### User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

#### Enter a comment and, if required, a trace comment.

The main comment will form an important part of your system's alarm history and must be enetered.

The trace comment will be added to the sensor graph at the point when the alarm was triggered and is optional.

Tip: If appropriate you can select a pre-defined comment from the drop-down list. The selected comment will then be displayed in the main comment box allowing you to amend it or add further information to it as required.

Acknowledge Alarm - Win	dows Internet Explorer					
🖉 🗢 🖉 http://192.	168.1.99/Events/Acknowledge	Alarm.aspx?riot=riot_1&grou	p=88linput=18lalarm=18l	date=14- 🕶 🐓	🗙 😽 Google	Q
Favorites 🏾 🏉 Acknow	ledge Alarm			<u>۵</u> -	🔊 • 🖃 🖶 • <u>P</u> a	ge 🕶 Safety 🕶 Tools 🕶 🔞 🕶
W Controls Ltd.	Overview     A	larms Reports	Configuration	Service	Print Help	12:01 13/07/2012
	RIOT	Group	Input	Alar	m	
	Demo RIOT	<ul> <li>Chill Store</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Chill Store Av</li> </ul>	erage 🔻 (Ct	nllAvg)Outside Limi 👻	
	Comn	nent Predefined			•	
		Predefined Annual sensor calibration	ons completed by AAW Co	ntrol Systems Lt	ď	
		Doors and plant checke System testing carried	d out by AAW Control System	ns Ltd	<b>N</b>	

Tip: You can add the current comment to the list of pre-defined comments by selecting (ticking) the *Add comment to predefined list* box prior to clicking the *Acknowledge* button.

Acknowledge Add comment to predefined list

#### 5. Click Acknowledge

After a few moments the page will display a confirmation message.

If your WebREACT system is running off a RIOT unit, then the message will state "1 *alarm(s) acknowledged*".

If your WebREACT system is running off a SCUFFLE unit, then the message will state "1 alarm(s) acknowledged. Some alarms acknowledged offline".

Note: It can take up to a minute for the acknowledgment to be communicated with the relevant control unit and for the confirmation message to be displayed.

#### Be patient. You do not need to click the Acknowledge button again.

W Controls Ltd.       → Overview       → Alarms       × Reports       → Configuration       → Service       → Print       Help       → 12:01 13/7/2012         RIOT       Group       Input       Alarm       → Coll Rem 1 × i       → (Chill Sould a Limits ▼         Deno RIOT       → Chill Room       1 × i       → (Chill Rem 1 × i       → (Chill Sould a Limits ▼         Comment       Doors and plant checked ok       ✓       ✓         Doors and plant checked ok, turned thermostat down by 1 degree       ✓	Favorites 🏾 🍘 Acknow	vledge Alarm				🔂 🕶 🖾	▼ 🖃 🖶 ▼ Page	e ▼ <u>S</u> afety ▼ T <u>o</u> ols ▼ 🔞
RIOT Group Input Alarm Demo RIOT - Chill Room 1 - IChil Rim 1 Air - (Chill South 1 - Comment Comment Doors and plant checked ok. Doors and plant checked ok, turned thermostal down by 1 degree	W Controls Ltd.	Overview	Alarms	ts ► Con	figuration	Service	Print Help	12:01 13/7/2012
Comment Doors and plant checked ok, turned thermostat down by 1 degree		RIOT	Group	- 1	Input Chill Day 1 Air	Alarm	Cutaida Lippita -	
Doors and plant checked ok, turned thermostat down by 1 degree		Demo RIOT C	omment Doors and plant ch	n 1 👻	Chil Rm 1 Air	(Chili)	Jutside Limits 🔻	
		Doors and plan	t checked ok turned thermos	atat down by 1 d	egree			
		Trace comment Ar	ck by NAA	Add comme	ent to predefined li	st 🛄	×	

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4



# QRS: Acknowledging an Alarm

QUICK REFERENCE SHEET

- 1. Go to the *Room Picture* for the point that is in alarm.
- 2. Click Alarms in the menu bar.
- 3. Select the alarm you want to acknowledge.

Tip: If you can't see the alarm you want to acknowledge, then go to the *Alarms* menu and click **Retrieve Recent Log** 

4. Enter a comment and, if required, a trace comment.

### 5. Click Acknowledge

Note: It can take up to a minute for the acknowledgment to be communicated with the relevant control unit and for the confirmation message to be displayed.

Be patient. You do not need to click the Acknowledge button again.
# <sup>7</sup> Understanding the Confirmation Message when Acknowledging an Alarm

When you acknowledge an alarm on WebREACT the confirmation message will either state "1 *alarm(s) acknowledged*" (if your WebREACT system is running off a RIOT unit) or it will state "1 *alarm(s) acknowledged. Some alarms acknowledged offline*" (if your WebREACT system is running off a SCUFFLE unit).

The difference between these confirmation messages is due to the different way that WebREACT communicates with a RIOT unit compared to a SCUFFLE unit.

Communication with a RIOT unit is always initiated by WebREACT, passing information such as alarm acknowledgments to the RIOT and pulling back any data in return. This means that the alarm acknowledgment is communicated to the RIOT immediately (assuming that the RIOT is online).

Communication with a SCUFFLE unit is always initiated by the SCUFFLE unit, which pushes data such as sensor readings to WebREACT and receives any information such as alarm acknowledgments in return. This means that the alarm acknowledgment is not actually communicated to the SCUFFLE until the SCUFFLE initiates its next communication.

In both cases, however, WebREACT logs the actual time when the user acknowledged the alarm - see Understanding the Alarm History when an Alarm is Acknowledged on page 38.



Communication between WebREACT and a RIOT unit; All conversations are initiated by WebREACT.



Communication between WebREACT and a SCUFFLE unit; All conversations are intiated by the SCUFFLE unit.



# Understanding the Alarm History when an Alarm is Acknowledged

When an alarm is triggered, WebREACT keeps a detailed history of the events associated with that alarm and its subsequent cknowledgment. This audit trail can be seen within the Alarm History.

#### Example of a typical alarm history when an alarm is acknowledged on a point that is monitored via a SCUFFLE control unit.

Alarm	List - Windows Internet	Explorer						
30	<ul> <li>http://192.168</li> </ul>	.1.99/Events/Alarms.as	px?view=history&riot=riot_1&gro	oup=1	- 4 🗙 🚼	Google		
🍃 Favoi	rites 🏾 🏉 Alarm List				🟠 🕶 🖾 💌 🗆	.] 🖶 ▼ <u>P</u> age ▼	<u>S</u> afety ▼	T <u>o</u> ols 🕶 🔞
AW C	ontrols Ltd.	▶ Overview ▶	Alarms Reports	Configuration	Service Prince	int Help 🕨 1	2:01 13/	07/2012
All Alarr	ns	👻 < 13 June	• 2012 - 13 June • 2012	> Query Graph	Comment Refresh			
Ack	Time	Point		Alarm	User	Value	Limit	Status
	13/06/2012 06:52:07	Stock Fridge	Stock Fridge Air	Stock Fridge Air				clr
	13/06/2012 06:52:07	Stock Fridge	Stock Fridge Air	Stock Fridge Air				ack
	13/06/2012 06:51:23	Stock Fridge	Stock Fridge Air	Stock Fridge Air	AAW Controls Ltd.	Fridge d	oor left ope	n, core ok
	13/06/2012 06:50:47	Stock Fridge	Stock Fridge Air	Stock Fridge Air				highret
	13/06/2012 06:48:36	Stock Fridge	Stock Fridge Air	Stock Fridge Air		Ack by NA	A: 13/6/201	2 06:51:23
V	13/06/2012 06:48:36	Stock Fridge	Stock Fridge Air	Stock Fridge Air		6.3	6	highalm

At 06:48:36 on 13/06/2012 the Stock Fridge was recognised as having been above limit for longer than the alarm delay period and an alarm was triggered.

# At 06:50:47 the Stock Fridge was recognised as being back within limits.

Despite the reading being back within limits, the alarms on both WebREACT and on the SCUFFLE unit would have continued to beep/flash as they are configured to only clear an alarm after it has been acknowledged. This is to make sure that someone is aware and accountable that an alarm has been triggered.

# At 06:51:23 the alarm was acknowledged on WebREACT with a comment of *"Fridge door left open, core ok"* and a trace comment of *"Ack by NAA"*.

At this point the alarm on WebREACT would have stopped beeping/flashing. The alarm on the SCUFFLE until would have continued for a few moments longer until the acknowledgement had been passed on to it.

The comment is shown with a line through it to indicate that WebREACT would not have passed the acknowledgment on to the SCUFFLE unit immediately. This is due to the way in which WebREACT and the SCUFFLE talk to each other with conversations only being initiated by the SCUFFLE.

Although the trace comment shows a log time of 06:48:36 (the same as the alarm), it was actually recorded on the system at 06:51:23 - which is shown as part of the detail of the comment. It is necessary for the trace comment to be given the same log time as the alarm so that the comment can be placed on the sensor graph at the point when the alarm was triggered.

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

At 06:52:07 WebREACT passed the acknowledgement through to the SCUFFLE and the SCUFFLE sent a reply back to WebREACT confirming that the acknowledgement had been received.

This would have been when the SCUFFLE next talked to WebREACT.

At this point the alarm on the SCUFFLE would have stopped beeping/flashing.

At this point the alarm was cleared as the reading was back within limits and the alarm had been acknowledged.

Example of a typical alarm history when an alarm is acknowledged on a point that is monitored via a RIOT control unit.

🗧 Alarm I	.is <mark>t - Windows Interne</mark> t	Explorer						
30	<ul> <li>http://192.168.</li> </ul>	1.99/Events/Alarms.aspx?view	🛨 😽 🗙 🚼 Ge	Q				
🖕 Favor	ites 🏾 🏉 Alarm List				🏠 🕶 🖾 💌 🖃	🖶 👻 Page	<ul> <li><u>Safety</u></li> </ul>	T <u>o</u> ols ▼ 🔞 ▼
AW Co	ontrols Ltd.	Overview Alar	ms 🕨 Reports	Configuration	Service Prin	tHelp 🕨	12:01 13	/07/2012
Chill Ro	om 7	▼ < 13 June ▼ 2012	? - 13 June 🔻 2012	Query Graph	Comment Refresh			
Ack	Time	Point		Alarm	User	Value	Limit	Status
	13/06/2012 10:30:18	Chill Store Average	Outside Limits	Outside Limits				cir
	13/06/2012 10:25:52	Chill Store Average	Outside Limits	Outside Limits	AAW Controls Ltd.			ack
	13/06/2012 10:25:47	Chill Store Average	Outside Limits	Outside Limits		Thermostat	turned up t	by 1 degree
Ĩ.	13/06/2012 10:23:12	Chill Store Average	Outside Limits	Outside Limits		Ack by NA	A: 13/6/201	12 10:25:47
	13/06/2012 10:23:12	Chill Store Average	Outside Limits	Outside Limits		1.9	2	lowalm

At 10:23:12 on 13/06/2012 the Chill Store was recognised as being below limit for longer than the alarm delay period and an alarm was triggered.

**At 10:25:47** the alarm was acknowledged on WebREACT with a comment of *"Thermostat turned up by 1 degree"* and a trace comment of *"Ack by NAA"*.

At this point the alarms on WebREACT and on the RIOT unit would have continued beeping/flashing.

At this point WebREACT would have passed the acknowledgement immediately and directly to the RIOT unit (assuming that the RIOT unit was online\*).

\* If the RIOT unit was not online, then the comment would be shown with a line through it to indicate that the acknowledgement was not passed immediately to the RIOT unit. There would then be a later "ack" in the alarm history which would indicate when communication with the RIOT was restored. At this point the RIOT would have been able to receive the acknowledgement from WebREACT and send a reply back to WebREACT confirming that the acknowledgement had been received.

Although the trace comment shows a log time of 10:23:12 (the same as the alarm), it was actually recorded on the system at 10:25:47 - which is shown as part of the detail of the comment. It is necessary for the trace comment to be given the same log time as the alarm so that the comment can be placed on the sensor graph at the point when the alarm was triggered.

At 10:25:52 the RIOT sent a reply back to WebREACT confirming that the acknowledgement had been received.

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

At this point the alarm on WebREACT and the alarm on the RIOT unit would have stopped beeping/flashing.

AAW

**Control Systems** 

At 10:30:18 the Chill Store was recognised as being back within limits and the acknowledged alarm was cleared.

### <sup>'</sup>Recognising when Servicing is in Progress/Overdue

### Servicing in Progress

If a point is in servicing mode, meaning its alarms will be inhibited (will not go off), then the *Site Plan* will show a grey bar sweeping across the room that the sensor is monitoring.



### Servicing Overdue

If a point's servicing is overdue (based on its next service date), then the Site Plan will highlight the room that the sensor is monitoring in green.



User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4



### Putting a Point into Servicing Mode

Putting a point into servicing mode temporarily inhibits its alarm for a specified period of time. This allows rooms and sensors to be cleaned/serviced - during which the operating temperature may well go outside of the allowed limits, without the alarms being triggered.

# 1. Go to the *Room Picture* page for the point you want to put into servicing mode.

You can click into the required *Room Picture* from the *Overview* page, or alternatively access it from the *Site Status* page or via the *Overview* menu.



# 2. If there are multiple inputs for the room, then select the required input from the drop-down list.

If the room is being monitored by multiple sensors then you will need to use the dropdown list to select the particular input that you want to put into servicing mode.

If all of the inputs need to be put into servicing mode, then you will need to do this separately for each input in turn.

- e http://192.168.1.99/Room	PictureAndMeter.aspx?riot=	riot_1&group=8	▼ 4 × Google	Q
Favorites Ø Chill Store			🛐 🕶 🖾 👻 🖾 🖶 🖉 Age 🕶 Safe	ty • T <u>o</u> ols • @•
W Controls Ltd. Over at Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Addron Alarm tom	view Alarms side Limits • Yes • Action 1 • 17:30:00	▶ Reports → Configur	ation > Service > Print Help > 12:0	7 10/7/2012



## 4. In the *Duration* box, enter the length of time that the alarm needs to be inhibited for

Update

The time needs to be entered in the format hh:mm:ss

Previous Next

Note: The system will retain the duration you enter for future use.

Duration	00:30:00	
Duration	00:30:00	

#### 5. Change the Service setting to "On".

**Note:** The first time you put a point into servicing mode you will need to activate the *Service* setting (which will initially be disabled) by clicking the *Update* button after entering the duration. It may then take several seconds after clicking the *Update* button before the *Service* setting is enabled.

AAN	/ Controls L	_td.	• 0	verview		Alarms	•	Reports
Input	Chll Rm 1 Air	•	Alarm	Outside L	imits	•		
		Service Duration Next Days betw services	veen		Jan	Off 0 Off On	2	
		Previou	IS N	ext		Update	]	

# AAW Control Systems

### 6. Click Update

Clicking *Update* with the *Service* setting set to "On" will begin the servicing period during which the alarm will be inhibited (will not go off).

The servicing period will end automatically (and the alarm will be re-activated) once the defined duration has elapsed.

AAN	/ Controls L	.td.	► 0\	verview		Alar	ms	Reports
Input	Chll Rm 1 Air	•	Alarm	Outside L	imits		•	
	12-22	Service Duration Next Days betw	veen		Jan	•	<u>0</u> 0:30:00	
	6	Previou	IS N	ext		U	pdate	

Note: While the room is in servicing mode, the Site Plan will show a grey bar sweeping across it.



#### User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

### Scheduling the Next Service

To help you manage the servicing of your system and facilities, WebREACT will automatically remind you when a point is due to be serviced.

## 1. Go to the *Room Picture* page for the point you want to schedule the next servicing for.

You can click into the required *Room Picture* from the *Overview* page, or alternatively access it from the *Site Status* page or via the *Overview* menu.



## 2. If there are multiple inputs for the room, then select the required input from the drop-down list.

If the room is being monitored by multiple sensors then you will need to use the dropdown list to select the particular input that you want to put into servicing mode.

If all of the inputs need to be scheduled for servicing, then you will need to do this separately for each input in turn.

🕒 🔾 🗢 🙋 http://192.168.	1.99/RoomPict	ureAndMeter.aspx?ri	ot=riot_1&group=8	8	• + ×	Google	م
🔶 Favorites 🛛 🍘 Chill Store					<u>6</u> - 5	- 🖃 🖶 - Page -	• Safety • Tools • 🔞 •
AW Controls Ltd.	Overvie	w 🕨 Alarms	Reports	Configuration	Service	Print Help ►	12:07 10/7/2012
Chill Store Average Chill Store S2 Chill Store S2 Chill Store S3 Action Action Aarm unti Aarm unti Chill Store S3 Action Previous	de able I Next	Yes  Yes  Action 1  Yes  Update			s1 5.0	2.5	53 -1.1



Days between	28
services	20

### 6. Click Update

This will apply the settings to the system.



User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4



### Testing a Point on Your System

You should test each point on your system regularly to make sure it goes into high alarm and low alarm correctly, can be acknowledged correctly, and clears correctly.

After completing a set of tests a Procedural Qualification should be created as this will provide a convenient way of referring back to the tests in the future - see Adding a New Procedural Qualification (PQ) These steps should then be repeated so that the point is tested for both its high alarm and its low alarm.

Adding a New Procedural Qualification (PQ) on page 50.

Note: To make sure the individual sensors are working correctly, you should aim to test every point at least once every 12 months.

Note: To make sure the control units (RIOTs or SCUFFLEs) are working correctly, you should aim to test at least one of the points on each unit at least once every month.

1. Note the time when you start the test.

This will be needed when you create the Procedural Qualification.

# 2. Add a comment against the room/point that you're testing to record that you're starting the test and how you will be creating an alarm condition.

- 2.1. Go to the Room Picture for the point that you're testing.
- 2.2. Click Alarms in the menu bar.

The Alarm List page will be displayed.

2.3. Click Comment

The Add Comment page will be displayed.

2.4. Type in an appropriate comment and click Add comment

After a few seconds a confirmation message will be displayed stating, "1 comment(s) added".

### 3. Create an alarm condition on the point that you're testing.

This can either be done by removing the sensor to a different location where it will give a reading that is outside of the point's acceptable limits, or by temporarily changing the point's alarm limits so that the sensor's normal operational reading will fall outside of those limits.

Tip: You will probably also want to reduce the point's alarm delay so that you're not waiting too long for the alarm to be triggered.

4. Check that all expected alarms are triggered correctly.

You should check that the alarm is triggered on both the PC-based WebREACT system and also on the relevant control unit (RIOT or SCUFFLE).

Page 48 of 76

WEB: www.aawcs.co.uk EMAIL: aaw@aawcs.co.uk TEL: 01635 248589 FAX: 01635 897591

5.

### AAW Control Systems Limited

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

You should also check that any text/email/voice dial-out alerts are raised according to the setup of your system.

Acknowledge the alarm via WebREACT, adding an appropriate comment and trace comment.

See Acknowledging an Alarm on page 33.

- 6. Check that the alarm has been acknowledged correctly. Any audible alarms should stop beeping and the room on WebREACT should be highlighted in yellow rather than flashing orange.
- 7. Add a comment against the point that you're testing to record that you're removing the alarm condition.
- 8. Remove the alarm condition.

Depending on how you created the alarm condition, this will either mean replacing the sensor to its correct location, or restoring the alarm limits to their original values.

Note: If you changed the alarm delay so that the alarm would be triggered more quickly, then don't forget to also restore this to its original value.

9. Check that the alarm condition has cleared correctly.

The room on WebREACT should be shown without any highlighting.

- 10. Add a comment against the point that you're testing to record that you're ending the test.
- 11. Note the time when you end the test.

This will be needed when you create the Procedural Qualification.

These steps should then be repeated so that the point is tested for both its high alarm and its low alarm.



### QRS: Testing a Point on Your System QUICK REFERENCE SHEET

You should test each point on your system regularly to make sure it goes into high alarm and low alarm correctly, can be acknowledged correctly, and clears correctly.

Note the time when you start the test. This will be needed when you create the Procedural Qualification.	
Add a comment against the point that you're testing to record that you're starting the test and how you will be creating an alarm	
e.g. Alarm test started by changing the alarm limits/delay.	
Create an alarm condition either by changing the alarm limits or by "spiking" the sensor.	
Tip: In either case you will probably also want to reduce the alarm delay so that you're not waiting too long for the alarm to be triggered.	
Check that all expected alarms are triggered correctly on both the control unit and WebREACT.	
Acknowledge the alarm via WebREACT, adding an appropriate comment and trace comment.	
e.g. Alarm test.	
Check that the alarm has been acknowledged correctly on both the control unit and WebREACT.	
Add a comment against the point that you're testing to record that you're removing the alarm condition.	
Remove the alarm condition.	
Check that the alarm condition has cleared correctly on both the control unit and WebREACT.	
Add a comment against the point that you're testing to record that	
e.g. Alarm test ended.	
Note the time when you end the test.	

These steps should then be repeated so that the point is tested for both its high alarm and its low alarm.

### Adding a New Procedural Qualification (PQ)

A Procedural Qualification provides a convenient way of referring to the operational tests that have been carried out on your system to make sure it is working fully and correctly.

Before adding a new Procedural Qualification, you should complete a full test of one or more of your points as described on page 48. This test should check that the point goes into high alarm and low alarm correctly, can be acknowledged correctly, and clears correctly when the sensor reading returns to being within acceptable limits.

#### Having tested one or more points as described on page 48, go 1. to the *Reports* menu, go to *IQ/OQ/PQs* and click PQs

The Procedural Qualifications page will be displayed showing any qualifications that have been added during the current year.



#### 2. Click New PQ

AA

The Operational/Procedural Qualification page will be displayed.

http://192.1	68.1.99/Report/PQ	s.aspx					- + × 🔮	Google		P -
Procedua	al Oualifications							🗈 🖶 🕶 Pag	e ▼ Safety ▼ Tools	• @• »
ols I td	Overview	γ <b>Δ</b> Ι	arms N	Report	te C	onfiguration Se	ervice Pr	int Heln	13-18 09/07/20	12
- 2012 - 0				frach		oninguration of		int ricip	10.10 03/07/20	
- 2012 - 0	3019 - 2012			irean						
Title Sta			nv -		User	Created		Last Modif	ied	
			↓							
C Oper	ational / Procedura	al Qualificat	tion - Windo	ws Intern	et Explorer					
ac	- A http://1	92.168.1.99	/Configurati	on/OOPO	asny			+ ++ ×	Google	
								100		
👷 Fav	orites 🌔 🌔 Oper	ational / Pro	ocedural Qu	alification				11 × 10	÷⊡ ∰ ÷ ⊵ag	le ♥ <u>S</u> afety ♥ T <u>o</u> o
AAW	Controls Ltd.	• C	Dverview	► A	arms	Reports Config	guration	Service	Print Help	13:08 09/07/2
PQ ref	erence		All re	oms		▼ < 9 July ▼ 2012	0:00:00 9	July - 201	12 23:59:59 >	Refresh
Title										Comment
									ſ	Create/update
								*		
1	le Timo		Point		Alarm	Usor	Value	Timit	Dolay	State
	00/07/2012	AAW	Chall		Anaria	User	DO test on do d	AA	Delay	dame
	11:44:05	RIOT	Room 1			AAW Controls Ltd.	WebREACT a	after confirmi and RIOT.	ng low alarm cleare	a correctly on
	09/07/2012	AAW	Chill	Chll Rm	Outside					4
	11:43:16	RIOT	Room 1	1 Air	Limits					cir
	09/07/2012	AAW	Chill	Chill Rm		AAW Controls Ltd.	lowlimit '9.0' =	> '1'		mod
	09/07/2012	AAW	Chill	1 AI			PO test Alarm	settings chang	ed to clear low alar	m after confirming
	11:42:42	RIOT	Room 1			AAW Controls Ltd.	alarm acknowl	edged correctly	on WebREACT a	nd RIOT.
	09/07/2012	AAW	Chill	Chll Rm	Outside	AAW Controls I td				ack
_	11:41:57	RIOT	Room 1	1 Air	Limits	AAW Controls Etc.				ack
	09/07/2012	RIOT	Chill Room 1	Chll Rm 1 Air	Outside	AAW Controls Ltd.	PQ test Alarm	ebREACT and	d atter confirming ala 1 RIOT	arms triggered
	-4 -47	10101	14 V V 447				concour on "	corder to r care		
_	09/07/2012	AAW					-		00 00 00	
	09/07/2012 11:39:23	AAW RIOT				jamescole@aawcs.co.uk	email1		00:00:02	lowalm
	09/07/2012 11:39:23 09/07/2012	AAW RIOT AAW	Chill	Chil Rm	Outside	jamescole@aawcs.co.uk	email1	9.0	00:00:02	lowalm lowalm
V	11:41:42 09/07/2012 11:39:23 09/07/2012 11:39:12	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT	Chill Room 1	Chil Rm 1 Air Chil Pau	Outside Limits	jamescole@aawcs.co.uk	email1	9.0	00:00:02 0:15:00	lowalm lowalm
V	11:41:42 09/07/2012 11:39:23 09/07/2012 11:39:12 09/07/2012 11:39:12	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT	Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1	Chil Rm 1 Air Chil Rm 1 Air	Outside Limits	jamescole@aawcs.co.uk AAW Controls Ltd.	email1 7.7 PQ test: LOW	9.0 :9/7/2012:11:4	00:00:02 0:15:00 1:42	lowalm lowalm
2	11:41:42 09/07/2012 11:39:23 09/07/2012 11:39:12 09/07/2012 11:39:12 09/07/2012	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW	Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1 Chill	Chil Rm 1 Air Chil Rm 1 Air Chil Rm	Outside Limits	jamescole@aawcs.co.uk	email1 7.7 PQ test LOW	9.0 :9/7/2012:11:4	00:00:02 0:15:00 1:42	lowalm lowalm
	11:41:42 09/07/2012 11:39:23 09/07/2012 11:39:12 09/07/2012 11:39:12 09/07/2012 11:39:12 09/07/2012 11:37:57	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT	Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1	Chil Rm 1 Air Chil Rm 1 Air Chil Rm 1 Air	Outside Limits	jamescole@aawcs.co.uk AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd.	email1 7.7 PQ test: LOW lowlimit '1.0' =	9.0 :9/7/2012:11:4 > '9'	00:00:02 0:15:00 1:42	lowalm lowalm mod
	11:41:42 09/07/2012 11:39:23 09/07/2012 11:39:12 09/07/2012 11:39:12 09/07/2012 11:37:57 09/07/2012	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW	Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1 Chill	Chil Rm 1 Air Chil Rm 1 Air Chil Rm 1 Air	Outside Limits	jamescole@aawcs.co.uk AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd.	email1 7.7 PQ test: LOW lowlimit '1.0' = PQ test: Alarm	9.0 :9/7/2012:11:4 > '9'	00:00:02 0:15:00 1:42	lowalm lowalm mod
	11:41:42 09/07/2012 11:39:23 09/07/2012 11:39:12 09/07/2012 11:39:12 09/07/2012 11:37:57 09/07/2012 11:37:40 09/07/2012	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT	Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1	Chil Rm 1 Air Chil Rm 1 Air Chil Rm 1 Air	Outside Limits	jamescole@aawcs.co.uk AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd.	email 7.7 PQ test: LOW lowlimit '1.0' = PQ test: Alarm high alarm clea	9.0 9/7/2012:11:4 > '9' red correctly o	00:00:02 0:15:00 1:42 ed to trigger low ala n WebREACT and	lowalm lowalm mod mafter confirmin RIOT.
	11:41:42 09/07/2012 11:39:23 09/07/2012 11:39:12 09/07/2012 11:37:57 09/07/2012 11:37:57 09/07/2012 11:37:40 09/07/2012	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT	Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1	Chill Rm 1 Air Chill Rm 1 Air Chill Rm 1 Air Chill Rm 1 Air	Outside Limits	jamescole@aawcs.co.uk AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd.	email 7.7 PQ test: LOW lowlimit '1.0' = PQ test: Alarm high alarm clea	9.0 9/7/2012:11:4 > '9' a settings chang red correctly o	00:00:02 0:15:00 1:42 ed to trigger low ala n WebREACT and	Iowalm Iowalm Iowalm mod Iowalm Iowal
	11:41:42 09/07/2012 11:39:23 09/07/2012 11:39:12 09/07/2012 11:37:57 09/07/2012 11:37:57 09/07/2012 11:37:40 09/07/2012 11:36:49 09/07/2012	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW	Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1 Chill Room 1	Chill Rm 1 Air Chill Rm 1 Air Chill Rm 1 Air Chill Rm 1 Air Chill Rm	Outside Limits Outside Limits	jamescole@aawcs.co.uk AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd.	email1 7.7 PQ test: LOW lowimit '1.0' = PQ test: Alarm high alarm clea	9.0 9/7/2012:11:4 > '9' a settings chang red correctly o	00:00:02 0:15:00 1:42 ed to trigger low ala n WebREACT and	Iowalm Iowalm mod matter confirmin RIOT. ctr

#### 3. Enter a PQ reference.

Each PQ must be given its own unique reference. This can be made up of alpha and/or numeric characters.

AAW

**Control Systems** 

Tip: We recommend you devise a standard format for these references, for example: "PQ" followed by the date, followed by the user's initials.

OQ reference PQ23062012\_GH

Note: You can only use letters, numbers and '\_' for the PQ reference.

#### 4. Select the room that you tested.

This will ensure that the PQ only includes the events that were part of your system test.

Note: A PQ is intended to be for a single room only. If you do not select a specific room then the system will save the qualification as an OQ instead of a PQ.

All rooms	
All rooms	1
Chill Room 1	
Chill Room 2	
Chill Room 3	
Chill Room 4	
Freezer 1	
Freezer 2	

## 5. Select/enter the dates and times between which you completed your testing.

This will ensure that the PQ only includes the events that were part of your system test.



6.

### AAW Control Systems Limited

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

.

#### Enter a *Title*.

Title

The title should provide a concise but meaningful description of the PQ for future reference.

PQ test of Chill Room 1, high and low alarms

### 7. If required, add a comment.

Any comment you add will become part of the overall alarm history of the system - see Viewing the Alarm History on page 25.

#### 7.1. Click Comment

A Comment box will be displayed.

Operational / Procedural Qualification - Windows Internet Explor	er		
🕒 🔾 🔻 🙋 http://192.168.1.99/Configuration/OQPQ.aspx		👻 🍫 🗙 🚼 Google	. م
🚖 Favorites 🛛 🏉 Operational / Procedural Qualification		🗄 • 🖻 • 🖻 🖶	▼ <u>P</u> age ▼ <u>S</u> afety ▼ T <u>o</u> ols ▼ @ ▼
AW Controls Ltd.       Overview       Alarms	Reports Configuration	Service Print	Help 13:37 9/7/2012
OQ reference PQ_Chill_Room_1 All rooms	▼ ≤ 9 July ▼ 2012 11:30:00 9	July • 2012 23:59:59	> Refresh
Title			Comment
PQ test of Chill Room 1, high and low alarms		~	
			Create/updx e

#### 7.2. Enter the required comment and click Add comment

Your comment will be saved on the system and the Comment box closed.



### 8. Click **Refresh** (which should be flashing red).

Clicking the *Refresh* button will update the list of events so that it includes alarms that have taken place during the specified date range. It also activates the *Create/update* button.

Note: If you have added a comment then the *Create/update* button will already be active and you will not need to click the *Refresh* button.

Coperational / Procedural Qualification - Windows Internet Explorer													• ×
CO V R http://192.168.1.99/Configuration/OQPQ.aspx				_			•	47 ×	🛃 Google				۰ م
🚖 Favorites 🛛 🍘 Operational / Procedural Qualification								• 🔊 •	· 🗆 🖶	<b>∗</b> <u>P</u> a	ige 👻 Safety	Tools	0• »
AAW Controls Ltd.   Overview  Alarms	► Re	ports	- 4	Con	figuration		► Se	rvice	Print	Hel	p → 13:3	7 9/7/201	2 ^
OQ reference PQ_Chill_Room_1 All rooms	• <	9 Jul	y ,	• 2012	11:30:00	9	July	▼ 2012	23:59:59	>	Refresh		
Title											Comment	<u>s</u>	
PQ test of Chill Room 1, high and low alarms								~			Crostolu	odata	
								~			Create/u	pdate	

### 9. Click **Create/update** (which should be flashing red).

A confirmation message will be displayed next to the *Create/update* button stating "qualification updated".



#### User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

### QRS: Adding a New PQ

QUICK REFERENCE SHEET

A Procedural Qualification provides a log of an operational test that has been carried out on your system to make sure it is working fully and correctly.

Before adding a new Procedural Qualification, you should complete a full test of one or more of your points as described on page 48. This test should check that the point goes into high alarm and low alarm correctly, can be acknowledged correctly, and clears correctly when the sensor reading returns to being within acceptable limits.

1. Having tested one or more points as described in **Testing a Point on Your System** on page 48, go to the *Reports* menu, go to *IQ/OQ/PQs* and click **PQs** 

### 2. Click New PQ

#### 3. Enter a PQ reference.

Note: You can only use letters, numbers and '\_' for the PQ reference.

#### 4. Select the room that you tested.

Note: A PQ is intended to be for a single room only. If you do not select a specific room then the system will save the qualification as an OQ instead of a PQ.

## 5. Select/enter the dates and times between which you completed your testing.

- 6. Enter a *Title*.
- 7. If required, add a comment.
- 8. Click **Refresh** (which should be flashing red).
- 9. Click **Create/update** (which should be flashing red).

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4



### Viewing Your Procedural Qualifications (PQs)

The Procedural Qualifications provide a log of the regular operational tests you carry out on your system to make sure it is working fully and correctly.

Each Procedural Qualification should show that a particular point goes into high alarm and low alarm correctly, can be acknowledged correctly, and clears correctly when the sensor reading returns to being within acceptable limits.

To make sure the individual sensors are working correctly, you should aim to test every point at least once every 12 months.

To make sure the control units (RIOTs or SCUFFLEs) are working correctly, you should aim to test at least one of the points on each unit at least once every month. You should also test that an alarm is triggered if communication is lost with that control unit.

### 1. Go to the *Reports* menu, go to *IQ/OQ/PQs* and click **PQs**

The *Procedural Qualifications* page will be displayed showing any qualifications that have been added during the current year.

				2	Ire Maps C		A A W	ms		
4	Procedual Qu	ualification	s - Windows Internet Exp	lorer		Ļ				l
	<b>O</b> O • [	http://1	92.168.1.99/Report/PQs.a	spx			• + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +	× Google		
	Favorites	Proc	edual Qualifications	Alarma	Paparta	Configuration	Sentiar	Deint L		Tor
	< 1 Jan	<ul> <li>✓ 2012</li> </ul>	- 9 July - 2012	> New PQ	Refresh	Conliguration	Service	Print F	ieip 15.13 09/	011
	Name		Title		Start	Finish	User	Created	Last Modifie	d
	chillroom1_0	9072012	PQ test of Chill Room 1,	high and low	09/07/2012	09/07/2012	AAW Controls	09/07/2012	09/07/2012	
	chillroom2_2	3062012	alarms PQ test of Chill Room 2,	high and low	23/06/2012	12:00:00 23/06/2012	AAW Controls	13:15:44 23/06/2012	13:15:44 23/06/2012	
	chillroom3_1	1052012	alarms PQ test of Chill Room 3,	high and low	09:15:00 11/05/2012	09:45:00	AAW Controls	11:23:18	11:23:18	
	chillroom4_0	3042012	alarms PQ test of Chill Room 4, alarms	high and low	03/04/2012	10:30:00 03/04/2012 11:30:00	AAW Controls	03/04/2012	03/04/2012 12:10:27	

6

WEB: www.aawcs.co.uk EMAIL: aaw@aawcs.co.uk TEL: 01635 248589 FAX: 01635 897591

### AAW Control Systems Limited

#### User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

Tip: If you want to view a qualification from an earlier period, then you can adjust the date settings at the top of the page.

The list of qualifications will be refreshed automatically.

Procedual Qualifications - Windows Internet Explorer			
🚱 🔵 🔻 🔊 http://192.168.1.99/Report/PQs.aspx		🝷 😽 🗙 🚼 Google	۰ م
🚖 Favorites 🏾 🏉 Procedual Qualifications		🛅 🕶 🔝 🔹 📾 🕶 <u>P</u> age 🕶	Safety 🕶 Tools 🕶 🔞 🕶 🤍
AAW Controls Ltd.   Overview   Alarms	▶ Reports ▶ Configuration	Service Print Help	9:13 27/6/2012 🔷
Jan ▼ 2012 - 27 June ▼ 2012 > New PQ	Refresh		

2.

C Proc

#### Click the name of the qualification you want to view.

The details of the qualification will be displayed. This should show a commented history of a particular point going into alarm (high and low), being acknowledged, and clearing when the sensor reading returns to being within acceptable limits.

cedual Qua	alifications - V	/indows Internet Ex	plorer								3
) • 🖻	http:// <b>192.1</b>	58.1.99/Report/PQs	aspx				• 4 <del>4</del>	🗙 🚼 Google		Q	•
vorites	6 Procedua	l Qualifications					<u>ن</u> ا	🛚 • 🖃 🖷 •	Page - Safety -	T <u>o</u> ols 🕶 🔞 🕶	**
Control	ls Ltd.	Overview	Alar	ms 🕨	Reports	Configuration	Service	Print Help	o 15:13 09	/07/2012	^
Jan 🖣	2012 - 9	July • 2012	> New F	PQ Ref	resh						
me	Title	9		S	itart	Finish	User	Created	Last Modifie	d	
lroom1_09	072012 PQ 1	est of Chill Room	I, high and I	low 0	9/07/2012	09/07/2012	AAW Controls	09/07/2012	09/07/2012	Edit	
10002 23	Carrier Carrier	ns est of Chill Room 3	2 high and I	1* low 2*	1:30:00	12:00:00	Ltd.	13:15:44	13:15:44		
	Proce	dural Qualification	chillroom1_(	09072012 -	Windows In	ternet Explorer	_				_ 0
	GO	) 🗢 🙋 http://19	2.168.1.99/R	eport/Viewl	PQ.aspx?pq=	chillroom1_09072012		- <del>+</del>	🗙 🚼 Google		
	Fav	orites 🔗 Proce	dural Oualifi	cation chill	room1 09072	012		- A	N · • +	▼ <u>P</u> age ▼ Safe	ety 🕶 T <u>o</u> ols 🕶 🔞
	AAW	Controls I td	0	erview	Alar	ms Reports	Configuratio	n Service	e Print H	lelp 15:04	09/07/2012
	Ac	k Time	Po	oint	Alarm	User	Value	Limit	Delay		State
		09/07/2012 11:44:05	Chill Room 1			AAW Controls Ltd.	PQ test ended and RIOT.	l: After confirming	low alarm cleare	d correctly on V	VebREACT
		09/07/2012 11:43:16	Chill Room 1	Chll Rm 1 Air	Outside Limits					clr	
		09/07/2012 11:43:01	Chill Room 1	Chll Rm 1 Air		AAW Controls Ltd.	lowlimit '9.0' = delay '60' => '	=> '1' '900'		mod	
		09/07/2012 11:42:42	Chill Room 1			AAW Controls Ltd.	PQ test: Alarn acknowledged	n settings changed 1 correctly on Web	to clear low alan REACT and RI	m after confirmir OT.	ng alarm
		09/07/2012 11:41:57	Chill Room 1	Chll Rm 1 Air	Outside Limits	AAW Controls Ltd.				ack	
		09/07/2012	Chill Room 1	Chll Rm	Outside Limits	AAW Controls Ltd.	PQ test: Alam	n acknowledged at	ter confirming al	arms triggered c	orrectly on
		09/07/2012 11:39:23				jamescole@aawcs.co.u	k email1		00:00:02	lowalm	1
	1	09/07/2012 11:39:12	Chill Room 1	Chll Rm 1 Air	Outside Limits		7.7	9.0	0:15:00	lowalm	1
		09/07/2012 11:39:12	Chill Room 1	Chll Rm 1 Air		AAW Controls Ltd.	PQ test: LOW	/:9/7/2012:11:41:4	2		
		09/07/2012 11:37:57	Chill Room 1	Chll Rm 1 Air		AAW Controls Ltd.	lowlimit '1.0' =	=> '9'		mod	
		09/07/2012 11:37:40	Chill Room 1			AAW Controls Ltd.	PQ test: Alarn alarm cleared	n settings changed correctly on WebI	to trigger low ala REACT and RIC	irm after confirm )T.	uing high
		09/07/2012 11:36:49	Chill Room 1	Chll Rm 1 Air	Outside Limits					clr	
		09/07/2012 11:36:33	Chill Room 1	Chll Rm 1 Air		AAW Controls Ltd.	highlimit '5.0' =	=> '10'		mod	

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4



### Viewing Your Operational Qualifications (OQs)

The Operational Qualifications provide a log of the operational tests completed by AAW Control Systems Ltd. across the entire system to make sure it is working fully and correctly.

Each Operational Qualification should test/show that every point on the system goes into high alarm and low alarm correctly, can be acknowledged correctly, and clears correctly when the sensor reading returns to being within acceptable limits.

An OQ should also test/show that alarms are triggered if communication is lost with any of the system's control units (RIOTs or SCUFFLEs).

The first Operational Qualification will be completed by AAW Control Systems Ltd as part of the initial commissioning of your system. Subsequent OQs may then be completed by AAW following any major change to the system.

### 1. Go to the *Reports* menu, go to *IQ/OQ/PQs* and click **OQs**

The *Operational Qualifications* page will be displayed showing any qualifications that have been added during the current year.

bttm://102.16	t Explorer						
· [. nup.//192.10	8.1.99/Plan.aspx?plan=overview.svg		•	≁• 🗙 🚰 Google		• م	
tes 🏾 🏉 Overview			<u>à</u>	• 🖻 • 🖻 🖨	▼ <u>P</u> age ▼ <u>Safety</u> ▼	Tools 🕶 🔞 🕶 🚿	
ntrols Ltd.	Overview Alarms	Reports Config Averages Compare Trends Batch Reports Calibration Certifice IQ/OQ/PQs Temperature Maps	uration → Ser ites ites	vice Print	Help > 15:56 2: V	216/2012	
C Opera	itional Qualifications - Windows Internet I	Explorer	+				
90	)      (2) http://192.168.1.99/Report/OQs	.aspx		•	↔ X Google		
Favo	Operational Qualifications		norte Confin	uration - C			
	Jan - 2012 - 27 June - 2012	New OQ Refresh	ports config	uradon Si	ervice Print	neip 8:45 27	0/2012
Nam	e Title	Start	Finish	User	Created	Last Modified	
001	OQ test for SCUFFLE 1	20/03/2012 00:00:00	20/03/2012 23:59:59	AAW Controls Ltd.	20/03/2012 11:15:44	20/03/2012 11:15:44	Edit
002	OQ test for SCUFFLE 2	20/03/2012 00:00:00	20/03/2012 23:59:59	AAW Controls Ltd.	20/03/2012 11:23:18	20/03/2012 11:23:18	Edit

WEB: www.aawcs.co.uk EMAIL: aaw@aawcs.co.uk TEL: 01635 248589 FAX: 01635 897591

### AAW Control Systems Limited

#### User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

Tip: If you want to view a qualification from an earlier period, then you can adjust the date settings at the top of the page.

The list of qualifications will be refreshed automatically.

Operational Qualifications - Windows Internet Explorer		
Contemport/OQs.aspx	👻 😽 🗙 🛃 Ge	oogle 🔎
🖌 Favorites 🛛 🍘 Operational Qualifications	🖞 • 🕅 • 🗆	🖶 🔹 Page 🔹 Safety 👻 Tools 👻 😧 👻
AW Controls Ltd.    ♦ Overview    ♦ Alarms   ▶ Re	ports ▶ Configuration ▶ Service ▶ P	rint Help 8:45 27/6/2012
1 Jan - 2012 - 27 June - 2012 > New OQ Refresh	]	

#### 2.

#### Click the name of the qualification you want to view.

The details of the qualification will be displayed. These should show each point going into alarm (high and low), being acknowledged, and finally clearing when the sensor reading returns to being within acceptable limits.

	erational Qua	lifications				🙆 •	<b>⊠</b> • ⊡ <b>⊕</b> •	Page - Sa	afety 🔻 T	ʻgols 🕶 🔞 🕶	>>
Ltd.	•	Overview	Alarn	ıs ► Repo	rts Configura	tion Servi	ce Print H	elp 8	:45 27/0	6/2012	~
2012	- 27 Jun	e 🕶 2012 🔉	New OQ	Refresh							
d.			Start	F	ïnish U	ser Cr	eated L	ast Modi	fied		
t for S	CUFFLE 1		20/03/20	12 00:00:00 2	0/03/2012 23:59:59 A4	W Controls Ltd. 20/	03/2012 11:15:44 20	0/03/2012 1	1:15:44	Edit	
t for S	CUFFLE 2		20/03/20	12 00:00:00 2	0/03/2012 23:59:59 A4	W Controls Ltd. 20/	03/2012 11:23:18 2	0/03/2012 1	1:23:18	Edit	
e	Operational	Qualification (	03 - Window:	Internet Explore	r						
G	0-1	http://192.	68.1.99/Repo	rt/ViewOQ.aspx?o	q=003		<b>-</b> <i>€</i> <del>1</del>	× 3	Google		
	Favorites	@ Operatio	nal Qualificat	ion 003					1	Page - Saf	fety 🔻 Tools
	W Contr	ols I td	Over	view Al	arms Reports	Configurat	ion Servic	e Pr	rint He	aln 12:	34 27/6/20
	un oonu	olo Etd.	0.001			Connigarat			inter rite		04 ENIOLEO
					0	Q for SCUFFLE 1					
					001: 20/3/2012 00:00:00	- 20/3/2012 23:59:59	AAW Controls Ltd.				
	Ack	Time		Poi	nt	Alarm	Usor	Value	Limi	t Delay	State
	20/0	3/2012	AAW	G 115	CLUE, A	0					1
	10:1	6:01	RIOT	Cold Store	Chill Store Average	Outside Limits					ctr
	20/0	3/2012 5:30	AAW	Cold Store	Chill Store Average	Outside Limits	AAW Controls Ltd.	AAW - switched	Low alar	rm testing - r	elay
	20/0	3/2012	AAW	Cold Store	Chill Store Average	Outside Limits	AAW Controls		T	1	ack
	10:1	5:00 13/2012	RIOT				Ltd.				
	20/0	4:24	RIOT	Cold Store	Chill Store Average	Outside Limits		1.8	2.0	0:15:00	lowalm
	10:1										100
	20/0 10:1 20/0	3/2012	AAW	Cold Store	Chill Store Average	Outside Limits					clr
	20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0	3/2012 3:26 3/2012	AAW RIOT AAW	Cold Store	Chill Store Average	Outside Limits	AAW Controls	AAW -	High alar	m testing - r	clr elay
	20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1	03/2012 3:26 (3/2012 3:00	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT	Cold Store Cold Store	Chill Store Average Chill Store Average	Outside Limits Outside Limits	AAW Controls Ltd.	AAW - switched	High alar 1 on	m testing - r	clr relay
	20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1	3/2012 3:26 3/2012 3:00 3/2012 2:22	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT	Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store	Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average	Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits	AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd.	AAW - switched	High alar 1 on	rm testing - r	clr relay ack
	20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1	3/2012 3:26 3/2012 3:00 3/2012 2:22 3/2012 2:22	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW	Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store	Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average	Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits	AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd.	AAW - switched	High alar 1 on 12.0	0:15:00	clr relay ack highalm
	20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0	3/2012 3:26 3/2012 3:00 3/2012 2:22 3/2012 1:53 3/2012	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW	Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Trolley	Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Trolley Returns	Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits	AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd.	AAW - switched 23.1	High alar 1 on 12.0	0:15:00	clr relay ack highalm
	20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1 20/0 10:1	03/2012 3:26 03/2012 3:00 03/2012 2:22 03/2012 1:53 03/2012 1:01	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT	Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Trolley Returns	Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Trolley Returns Ambient	Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits	AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd.	AAW - switched 23.1	High alar i on 12.0	0:15:00	ctr relay ack highalm ctr
	2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000 10:1	03/2012 3:26 03/2012 3:00 03/2012 2:22 03/2012 1:53 03/2012 1:01 03/2012 0:44	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW	Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Trolley Returns Trolley Returns	Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Trolley Returns Ambient Trolley Returns	Outside Limits	AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls	AAW - switched 23.1 AAW -	High alar 1 on 12.0 Low alar	0:15:00	ctr relay ack highalm ctr relay
	2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000	03/2012 3:26 03/2012 3:00 03/2012 2:22 03/2012 1:53 03/2012 1:01 0:2012 0:44 0:44 0:2012	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW	Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Trolley Returns Cold Store	Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Trolley Returns Ambient Trolley Returns Ambient	Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Trolley Returns	AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls	AAW - switched 23.1 AAW - switched	High alar 1 on 12.0 Low alar 1 on	0:15:00	clr relay ack highalm clr relay
	2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000 10:1 2000 10:1	03/2012 3:26 3:20 3/2012 3:00 3/2012 2:22 3/2012 1:53 3/2012 1:01 3/2012 0:44 3/2012 0:44	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT	Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Trolley Returns Trolley Returns Cold Store	Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Trolley Returns Ambient Trolley Returns Ambient	Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Trolley Returns Ambient	AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd.	AAW - switched 23.1 AAW - switched	High alar 1 on 12.0 Low alar 1 on	0:15:00	clr relay ack highalm clr relay ack
	2000 10:1 10:1 2000 10:1	3/2012 3:26 3/2012 3:00 3/2012 2:22 3/2012 1:53 3/2012 1:01 3/2012 0:44 3/2012 0:45	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT	Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Cold Store Trolley Returns Cold Store Trolley Returns Cold Store Trolley Returns	Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Trolley Returns Ambient Trolley Returns Trolley Returns Trolley Returns Trolley Returns	Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Trolley Returns Ambient Outside Limits	AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd.	AAW - switched 23.1 AAW - switched	High alar i on 12.0 Low alar i on 2.0	0:15:00 0:0:1:00	chr relay ack highalm chr relay ack lowalm
	2000           10:1           2000           10:1           2000           10:1           2000           10:1           2000           10:1           2000           10:1           2000           10:1           2000           10:1           2000           10:1           2000           10:1           2000           10:1           2000           10:1           2000           10:1           2000	3/2012 3/26 3/2012 3/2012 2/22 3/2012 2/22 3/2012 1/53 3/2012 0/44 3/2012 0/44 3/2012 0/44 3/2012 0/44 3/2012	AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW RIOT AAW	Cold Store       Cold Store       Cold Store       Cold Store       Cold Store       Trolley       Returns       Cold Store       Cold Store       Trolley       Returns       Trolley       Trolley       Trolley       Trolley	Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Chill Store Average Trolley Returns Ambient Trolley Returns Trolley Returns Ambient Trolley Returns	Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits Trolley Returns Ambient Outside Limits Outside Limits Outside Limits	AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd. AAW Controls Ltd.	AAW - switched 23.1 AAW - switched	High alar d on 12.0 Low alar d on 2.0	m testing - r 0:15:00 m testing - r 0:01:00	ctr relay ack highalm ctr relay ack lowalm



### Viewing Your Installation Qualifications (IQs)

The Installation Qualifications provide a summary of the configuration of your system at a particular moment in time. They also indicate whether points have gone into alarm, thereby providing additional evidence of the system working fully and correctly.

The first Installation Qualification is normally completed by AAW Control Systems Ltd as part of the initial commissioning of your system.

### 1. Go to the *Reports* menu, go to *IQ/OQ/PQs* and click **IQs**

The *Installation Qualifications* page will be displayed showing any qualifications that have been added during the current year.



Tip: If you want to view a qualification from an earlier period, then you can adjust the date settings at the top of the page.

The list of qualifications will be refreshed automatically.

Installation Qualifications - Windows Internet Explo	ver		
C		👻 😽 🗙 🚼 Google	۶ -
👷 Favorites 🛛 🍘 Installation Qualifications		🏠 🕶 🖾 👻 📾 🕶 <u>P</u> age 🕶 Sa	afety 🕶 T <u>o</u> ols 🕶 🔞 🕶 🐡
AAW Controls Ltd. Overview	Alarms → Reports → Configuration	Service Print Help 09:2	27 27/06/2012
1 Jan ▼ 2012 - 27 June ▼ 2012 >	New IQ Refresh		

WEB: www.aawcs.co.uk EMAIL: aaw@aawcs.co.uk TEL: 01635 248589 FAX: 01635 897591

2.

🏉 Inst 0

### AAW Control Systems Limited

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

#### Click the name of the qualification you want to view.

The details of the qualification will be displayed. These include the alarm settings (low limit, high limit, delay and repeat) and operating times for each sensor.

ation Qualifications - Windows Internet Explorer					
)      [2] http://192.168.1.99/Report/IQs.aspx			- + ×	Google	<u>- م</u>
rites 🖉 Installation Qualifications			🙆 • 🖻	] • ⊡ 🖶 • Page • Safety •	Tools • 🕢 •
ontrols Ltd.   Overview  Ala	arms	Configuration	Service	Print Help    09:27 27/	06/2012
Jan 👻 2012 - 27 June 👻 2012 🔰 New	IQ Refresh				
e Title Start	Finish	User	Created	Last Modified	
IQ for SCUFFLE 1 20/03/2012 00:00:00	20/03/2012 23:59:59	AAW Controls Ltd.	20/03/2012 11:1	5:44 20/03/2012 11:15:44	Edit
IQ for SCUFFLE 2 20/03/2012 00:00:00	20/03/2012 23:59:59	AAW Controls Ltd.	20/03/2012 11:2	3:18 20/03/2012 11:23:18	Edit
Installation Qualification 002 - Wind	dows Internet Explorer				لروا
C • E http://192.168.1.99/	Report/ViewIQ.aspx?iq=002			▼   4   ×   8 Google	
🙀 Favorites 🏾 🏀 Installation Quali	fication 002			👌 • 🖻 • 🖻 🖶	<ul> <li> <u>         P</u>age ▼ <u>Safety</u> ▼ Tools ▼         (         </li> </ul>
AAW Controls Ltd.	Overview 🕨 Alarms	s ▶ Reports ▶	Configuratio	n  Service  Print	Help 9:20 27/6/2012
		IQ for S	CUFFLE 1		
	001: 2	0/3/2012 00:00:00 - 20/3	2012 23:59:59 AA	W Controls Ltd.	
Chill Room 1	Low Limit High	Limit Delay	Repeat	Operating Times	Alarm E-mail
				estay Start Tails Bailey Start Tails	
	(Ch	ll1)Outside Limits	Sut Mo	00.00.00.00.00.00 1:1 00.00.00.00.00 0 00.00.00 17:30:00 1:5 00:00:00.00.00	
Chll Rm 1 Ambient			To: We The	6 05:00:00 17:30:00 25:12 00:00:00:00:00 6 05:00:00 17:30:00 25:12 00:00:00:00:00 05:00:00 17:30:00 25:12 00:00:00:00:00:00 05:00:00 17:30:00 25:12 00:00:00:00:00:00	
		10.0 00.15.00			
	1.0	10.0 00:15:00	00:30:00	05:00:00 16:30:00 25:12 00:00:00 00:00:00 00:00:00 00:00:00 25:12 12:00:00 12:00:00 23:12 00:00:00 00:00 00	
Retail Packing Room	1.0 Low Limit High	Limit Delay	00:30:00 fre Sar	00000000000000000000000000000000000000	Alarm E-mail
Retail Packing Room	1.0 Low Limit High	Limit Delay	00:30:00 <sup>pri</sup> Bat	Operating         Times           otage         Times	Alarm E-mail
Retail Packing Room	1.0 Low Limit High (RtF	Limit Delay	00:30:00 5at	000001850001351         00000100000           000001850001351         100000100000           2512         00000100000           00000100000         00000100000           00000100000         00000100000           00000100000         00000100000           00000100000         10         00000100000           00000100000         10         00000100000           00000100000         10         00000100000           00000100000         10         0000000000000	Alarm E-mail
Retail Packing Room Rtl Pckng Rm Ambient	1.0 Low Limit High (RtF	10.0 00:15:00 Limit Delay ?ck)Outside Limits	00:30:00 Yes Sar Repeat	Control         Dist         Dist <thdist< th="">         Dist         Dist         &lt;</thdist<>	Alarm E-mail
Retail Packing Room Rtl Pckng Rm Ambient	1.0 Low Limit High (Rdf 4.0	10.0         00:15:00           Limit         Delay           Pck)Outside Limits         9.0	00:30:00 % Repeat 00:30:00 % 5ar 5	Bit State         Bit State <t< td=""><td>Alarm E-mail</td></t<>	Alarm E-mail
Retail Packing Room Rtl Pckng Rm Ambient Chill Room 7	1.0 Low Limit High (RtF 4.0 Low Limit High	10.0     00:15:00       Limit     Delay       Pck)Outside Limits     9.0       00:01:00       Llimit     Delay	00:30:00 %	State         State         State         State           1	Alarm E-mail
Retail Packing Room Rd Pckng Rm Ambient Chill Room 7	1.0 Low Limit High (RdF 4.0 Low Limit High	10.0     00:15:00       1 Limit     Delay       Pck)Outside Limits     9.0       00:01:00     00:01:00       1 Limit     Delay	00:30:00 % Repeat 00:30:00 % Repeat	State         21:         State         State           21:         State         State         State           31:         State         State         State           State         State         State         State	Alarm E-mail
Retail Packing Room Rd Pckng Rm Ambient Chill Room 7	Low Linit High (RdF 4.0 Low Linit High	10.0     00:15:00       11.imit     Delay       9.0     00:01:00       11.imit     Delay       17)Outside Limits	00:30:00 %	State         The second state         The second state           State         State         State         State           State         State         State         State         State           State         State         State         State         State         State           State	Alarm E-med Alarm E-med
Retail Packing Room Rfl Pckng Rm Ambient Chill Room 7 Chill Rm 7 Ambient	Low Limit High (Ruff 4.0 Low Limit High (Ch	Itimit     Delay       Limit     Delay       Pck/Outside Limits     9.0       0.01:00     Limit       Delay     17)Outside Limits	00:30:00 %	Bit of the second sec	Alarm E-mail
Retail Packing Room Rtl Pckng Rm Ambient Chill Room 7 Chill Rm 7 Ambient	Low Limit High Charles (Ruff 4.0 Low Limit High (Charles (Charles	100     00:15:00       Limit     Delay       eds/Outside Limits     9.0       9.0     00:01:00       Limit     Delay       10:0     Delay       11:0     Delay       11:0     00:15:00	00:30:00 7 and 7 a	Bit is in the second	Alarm E-mail
Retail Packing Room Rtl Packing Room Chill Room 7 Chill Rom 7 Ambient	Low Linit High (Ruff 4.0 Low Linit High (Cli 4.0 Low Linit High	100     00:1500       Limit     Delay       eks/Outside Limits     9.0       9.0     00:01:00       Limit     Delay       07/Outside Limits     16.0       16.0     00:15:00       Limit     Delay	00:30:00 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	Bit I i         Bit I i <t< td=""><td>Alarm E-mail</td></t<>	Alarm E-mail
Retail Packing Room Rd Pekng Rm Ambient Chill Room 7 Chill Rm 7 Ambient Offial Chill	Low Limit High Content (Riff 4.0 Low Limit High 4.0 Low Limit High	100     00:15:00       Limit     Delay       Ck)Outside Limits     9.0       9.0     00:01:00       Limit     Delay       07)Outside Limits     16.0       16.0     00:15:00       Limit     Delay	0030.00 fr Repeat 0030.00 fr Repeat Repeat 0030.00 fr 0030.00 fr 003	Bit of the second sec	Alarm E-mail Alarm E-mail Alarm E-mail
Retail Packing Room Rtl Packing Rm Ambient Chill Room 7 Chill Rm 7 Ambient Offial Chill	1.0           Low Linit         High           4.0         Kill           Low Linit         High           4.0         Kill           Low Linit         High           Low Linit         High           (Chi         Kill           (Offlet)         Kill	100     00:15:00       Limit     Delay       ?ck)Outside Limits     9.0       0.0     00:01:00       Limit     Delay       10:0     00:15:00       Limit     Delay       16:0     00:15:00       Limit     Delay       Chil/Outside Limits     Chil/Outside Limits	0030.00 *** Repeat	Bit is and is	Alarm E-mail Alarm E-mail Alarm E-mail

#### User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4



### Adding a New Installation Qualification

An Installation Qualification provides a summary of the configuration of your system at a particular moment in time. It also indicates whether your monitored points have gone into alarm, thereby providing additional evidence of the system working fully and correctly.

### 1. Go to the *Reports* menu, go to *IQ/OQ/PQs* and click **IQs**

The *Installation Qualifications* page will be displayed showing any qualifications that have been added during the current year.



### 2. Click New IQ

The Installation Qualification page will be displayed.

Ltd.	Overview	Alarms ► Reports	Configu	uration	Service		Print Help 10:40 27/06/201	2
2012 -	27 June - 2012 > 1 Start	Finish	User		Created		Last Modified	
🏉 In	stallation Qualification - Wine	dows Internet Explorer						
G	🔵 🗢 🙋 http://192.168.1	.99/Configuration/IQ.aspx					👻 🐓 🗙 🚰 Google	
🚖 F	Favorites 🏾 🍘 Installation (	Qualification					🟠 🔹 🖾 👻 🖃 🖶 🛉 🔤 <u>P</u> age	
IQ re Title	eference	CONTINUE → Alai	2012 0:00:00	- 27 Jun	e <b>v</b> 2012 2	13:59:6	59 Refresh Comment	10.37 211
	Chill Room 1	Low Limit	High Limit	Delay	Repeat		Operating Times	Alarm E-n
	Chill Rm 1 Air		(Chll1)Outsid	le Limits		Son Non Tue Wed	Start         Finith         Electry         Start         Finith           000000         000000         11         000000         000000           050000         173000         15         000000         000000           050000         173000         2512         000000         000000           050000         173000         2512         000000         000000           050000         173000         2512         000000         000000	
		1.0	10.0	00:15:00	00:30:00	Fri Sat	05:00:00 16:30:00 25:12 00:00:00:00:00 00:00:00:00:00:00 25:12 12:00:00 12:00:00 25:12 00:00:00:00:00:00	
	Retail Packing Room	Low Limit	High Limit	Delay	Repeat		Operating Times	Alarm E-n
	Rtl Pckng Ambient		(RtIPck)Outsi	de Limits		Weekk Son Mos Tue	ry Surry Think Hadday Soury Think 00:00:00:00:00:00:01 10:00:000 06:00:01:15:00:01:5:00:00:00:00:00 06:00:01:15:00:02:12:00:00:00:00:00	
	ÿ	4.0	9.0	00:01:00	00:30:00	Tina Tri Sat	06000011-0000 2312 00000000000 08000145000 2312 00000000000 000000145000 2312 120000120000 00000000000000 2312 120000120000 2312 000000000000	
	Chill Room 7	Low Limit	High Limit	Delay	Repeat		Operating Times	Alarm E-r
	Chil Rm 7 Air		(Chll7)Outsid	le Limits		Wrebb Sun Mon Tue Wed	Tank         Taska         Solution         Funktion           00.0000         00.0000         1.1         00.0000         00.0000           68.0000         17.3000         25.12         00.0000         00.0000           06.0000         17.3000         25.12         00.0000         00.0000           06.0000         17.3000         25.12         00.0000         00.0000	
		4.0	16.0	00:15:00	00:30:00	Thu Fri Set	050000173000251200000000000000 0500001630002512000000000000000000 0000000000000251212120000120000 251210000000000	
	Offal Chill	Low Limit	High Limit	Delay	Repeat		Operating Times	Alarm E-n
			(OfflChll)Outsi	ide Limits		Werels Son Mon Tra	Jame         Fields         Sourt         Fields           00:00:00:00:00:00:00         1:1         00:00:00:00:00:00         0:00:00           00:00:00:01:15:00         1:3         00:00:00:00:00:00         0:00:00           00:00:00:01:15:00         1:3         00:00:00:00:00:00         0:00:00:00:00:00	

WEB: www.aawcs.co.uk EMAIL: aaw@aawcs.co.uk TEL: 01635 248589 FAX: 01635 897591

### AAW Control Systems Limited

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

#### Enter an IQ reference.

Each IQ must be given its own unique reference. This can be made up of alpha and/or numeric characters.

After entering a reference the *Refresh* button and the *Create/update* button will start to flash red to remind you that these need to be used to complete the new IQ.

Tip: We recommend you devise a standard format for these references, for example: "IQ" followed by the date, followed by the user's initials.

IQ reference IQ23062012\_GH

Note: You can only use letters, numbers and '\_' for the IQ reference.

Select/enter the required date and time range.

4.

3.

For each point, the IQ will indicate whether it went into alarm during the specified date range.

If a point went into alarm within the specified date range then the alarm settings (low limit, high limit, delay and repeat) are shown in orange text. If the point didn't go into alarm then the alarm settings are shown in black text.

< 27 June ▼ 2012 0:00:00 - 27 June ▼ 2012 23:59:59 >

Click in the day, year or time boxes to edit the value. (Times must be entered in the format hh:mm:ss)



Click the left and right arrows to move the date range forwards/ backwards.

The dates will be moved forwards/backwards according to the duration of the current date range.

For example, if the current date range is for a single day, then clicking an arrow will move the dates forwards/backwards by a single day.

If the current date range is for 7 days, then clicking an arrow will move the dates forwards/backwards by 7 days.

#### User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

#### 5. Enter a Title.

The title should provide a concise but meaningful description of the IQ for future reference.

AAW

**Control Systems** 

Title

IQ for SCUFFLE 1 following software upgrade

#### 6. If required, add a comment.

Any comment you add will become part of the overall alarm history of the system - see Viewing the Alarm History on page 25.

#### 6.1. Click Comment

A *Comment* box will be displayed.



#### 6.2. Enter the required comment and click Add comment

Your comment will be saved on the system and the *Comment* box closed.

Comment	X
IQ completed for SCUFFLE 1 following software upgrade	*
Add comment	Ŧ

### 7. Click **Refresh** (which should be flashing red)

Clicking Refresh checks for alarms that have taken place during the specified date range and activates the *Create/update* button.

Note: If you have added a comment then the *Create/update* button will already be active and you will not need to click the *Refresh* button.

**AAW Control Systems Limited** WEB: www.aawcs.co.uk EMAIL: aaw@aawcs.co.uk User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4 TEL: 01635 248589 FAX: 01635 897591 EInstallation Qualification - Windows Internet Explorer - C -X-🕶 🍫 🗙 🛃 Google 3 • E http://192.168.1.99/Configuration/IQ.aspx 🔆 Favorites 🛛 🍘 Installation Qualification 🛐 🕶 🛐 👻 🖃 📾 💌 <u>P</u>age 🕶 Safety 🕶 Tools 🕶 🔞 🕶 AAW Controls Ltd. ► Overview ► Alarms ► Reports ► Configuration Service Print Help 15:03 27/6/2012 Commitat IQ reference 003 C 27 June V 2012 0:00:00 - 27 June V 2012 23:59:59 V Title IQ for SCUFFLE 1 following software upgrade - Create/update Click Create/update (which should be flashing red) 8. A confirmation message will be displayed next to the Create/update button stating "IQ updated". - C - X -Installation Qualification - Windows Internet Explorer 🔹 🍫 🗙 🚰 Google 0 A Favorites A Installation Qualification 🛐 🔹 🛐 🤘 📼 🚔 💌 Page 🕶 Safety 🕶 Tools 🕶 🔞 🕶 Comment Title IQ for SCUFFLE 1 following software upgrade Create/upda - E -X-Installation Qualification - Windows Internet Explorer 🔹 🍫 🗙 🛃 Google 😋 🔵 🔻 🔊 http://192.168.1.99/Configuration/IQ.asp 0 -Favorites A Installation Qualification 😚 🕶 🔝 👻 📾 💌 Page 🕶 Safety 🕶 Tools 🕶 🔞 🕶 AAW Controls Ltd. → Overview → Alarms → Reports → Configurati Service Print Help 14:51 27/06/2012 IQ reference 003 Refresh Title IQ for SCUFFLE 1 following software upgrade Create/update IQ updated. Confirmation message Tip: If the IQ you created/updated is not immediately visible when you return to the Installation Qualifications page, then click the Refresh button to update the list.



### Viewing Your Calibration Certificates

WebREACT is able to store the UKAS-traceable calibration certificates for your sensors, giving you instant access whenever you need it.

To ensure there is an unbroken chain of traceability back to national UKAS standards, WebREACT also stores the UKAS calibration certificates for AAW's calibration equipment.

### 1. Go to the *Reports* menu and click **Calibration Certificates**

The *Calibration Reports* page will be displayed showing any calibration certificates that have been added during the current year.



Tip: If you want to view a calibration certificate from an earlier period, then you can adjust the date settings at the top of the page.

The list of certificates will be refreshed automatically.

Calibration Reports - Windows Internet Explorer		
C v http://192.168.1.99/Report/CalibrationCertificates.aspx	- 44 🗙 🚰 Google 🖉 -	-
A Favorites 🖉 Calibration Reports	🛐 🕶 🖾 👻 🚍 🖶 🕶 Page 🕶 Safety 🕶 Tools 🕶 🔞 🕶	*
AAW Controls Ltd. ► Overview ► Alarms ► Reports ► Configuration	▶ Service → Print Help → 14:17 22/6/2012	2
1 Jan - 2012 - 22 June - 2012 > New calibration Refresh		





### Viewing Your Temperature Mapping Reports

WebREACT is able to store any Temperature Mapping Reports that have been completed for your storage facilities/equipment.

#### 1. Go to the *Reports* menu and click **Temperature Maps**

The *Temperature Maps* page will be displayed showing any remperature mapping reports that have been added during the current year.

Control     C	hdows Internet Explorer		▼ 4+ × Socale	<u>م</u>
Statu       Overview       Alarms       > Reports       Configuration       > Service       > Print       Help       > 15:44 22/8/2012         Averages       Satch Reports       Satch Reports       Satch Reports       Satch Reports       Satch Reports         Control Distation Certificates       Imperature Maps       Imperature Maps       Imperature Maps       Imperature Maps       Imperature Maps         Imperature Maps       Inter/821681.59/Report/FridgeMaps.aspc       Imperature Maps       Imperature	Overview		🏠 🔹 🖾 👘 🔹 Pac	je ▼ Safety ▼ Tools ▼ @ ▼ *
Image: Strate	s Ltd. Overview Alarms	Reports Configurat Averages Compare Trends Patch Reports Calibration Certificates IQ/QQ/PQs → Temperaturates	tion Service Print Help	→ 15:44 22/6/2012
Foroite:       Temperature Maps         AWW Controls Ltd.       > Overview         AWW Controls Ltd.       > Overview         AdwW Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room *_Mar 2012       230662012 11:25:44         AdwW Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room *_Mar 2012       230662012 11:25:44         AdwW Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room *_Mar 2012       230662012 11:25:44         AdwW Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room *_Mar 2012       230662012 11:25:44         AdwW Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room *_Mar 2012       230662012 11:25:44         AdwW Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room *_Mar 2012       230662012 11:31:13         230662012 11:31:13       230662012 11:31:13	Temperature Maps - Windows Internet Explore	r reMans.aspx	-   4 <sub>0</sub>   X	
AAW Controls Ltd.       Overview       Alarms       Reports       Configuration       Service       Print       Help       10:49 27/06/20         I Jan 2012       27 June 2012       Retream       Created       Last Modified         Adw Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 1_Mar 2012       2306/2012 11:15:44       2306/2012 11:23:16       2306/2012 11:23:16         Adw Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 1_Mar 2012       2306/2012 11:23:16       2306/2012 11:23:16       2306/2012 11:23:16         Adw Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 4_Mar 2012       2306/2012 11:23:16       2306/2012 11:23:16       2306/2012 11:23:16         Adw Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 4_Mar 2012       2306/2012 11:31:13       2306/2012 11:31:13       2306/2012 11:31:13	Favorites A Temperature Maps		Å • 6	] → 🖃 📾 → Page → Safety → Tool
C 1 Jan + 2012 - 27 June + 2012 > Refresh           Reference         Created         Last Modified           AWV Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 1_Mar 2012         2306/2012 11:15:44         2306/2012 11:15:44           AWV Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 1_Mar 2012         2306/2012 11:25:18         2306/2012 11:25:18           AWV Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 3_Mar 2012         2306/2012 11:25:18         2306/2012 11:25:14           AWV Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 4_Mar 2012         2306/2012 11:25:14         2306/2012 11:25:44           AWW Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 4_Mar 2012         2306/2012 11:25:44         2306/2012 11:25:44	AAW Controls Ltd. Overview	Alarms ► Reports	Configuration Service	Print Help 10:49 27/06/2
Reference         Created         Last Modified           AWV Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 1_Mar 2012         2306/2012 11:15:44         2306/2012 11:25:18           AWV Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 2_Mar 2012         2306/2012 11:25:18         2306/2012 11:25:14           AWV Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 3_Mar 2012         2306/2012 11:25:14         2306/2012 11:25:14           AWV Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 4_Mar 2012         2306/2012 11:25:14         2306/2012 11:31:13	✓ 1 Jan ▼ 2012 - 27 June ▼ 2012	Refresh		
AAW Temperature Mapping Report, Chill Room 1, Mar 2012         2306/2012 11:15:44         2306/2012 11:23:18           AAW Temperature Mapping Report, Chill Room 3, Mar 2012         2306/2012 11:23:18         2306/2012 11:23:18           AAW Temperature Mapping Report, Chill Room 3, Mar 2012         2306/2012 11:25:14         2306/2012 11:25:14           AAW Temperature Mapping Report, Chill Room 4, Mar 2012         2306/2012 11:31:13         2306/2012 11:31:13	Reference		Created	Last Modified
AAV Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 2, Mar 2012         23066012 11 23 18         23066012 11 23 16           AVV Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 3, Mar 2012         23066012 11 28 54         23066012 11 28 54           AVV Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 4, Mar 2012         23062012 11 31 13         23062012 11 31 13	AAW Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Roo	m 1_Mar 2012	23/06/2012 11:15:44	23/06/2012 11:15:44
AAW Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 4_Mar 2012         230662012 11:264         230662012 11:31:33           AAW Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 4_Mar 2012         230662012 11:31:13         230662012 11:31:13	AAW Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room	m 2_Mar 2012	23/06/2012 11:23:18	23/06/2012 11:23:18
AWY Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room 4_Mart 2012	AAW Temperature Mapping Report_Chill Room	m 3_Mar 2012	23/06/2012 11:28:54	23/06/2012 11:28:54

Tip: If you want to view a temperature mapping report from an earlier period, then you can adjust the date settings at the top of the page.

The list of reports will be refreshed automatically.

C Temperature Maps - Windows Internet Explorer						
CO V FildgeMaps.aspx			• 4 <sub>7</sub>	×	Google	• م
🙀 Favorites 🏾 🎯 Temperature Maps			<u>ن</u> ا	5	• 🖃 🖶 • <u>P</u> age	▼ <u>S</u> afety ▼ T <u>o</u> ols ▼ @ ▼ <sup>≫</sup>
AAW Controls Ltd.   Overview   Alarms	Reports	Configuration	Servic	e	Print Help	10:49 27/06/2012 🔶
1 Jan ▼ 2012 - 27 June ▼ 2012 > Refresh						



User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4



### Adding a New User

### 1. Go to the *Configuration* menu and click **Users**

The Users page will be displayed showing the configuration settings for the user that is currently logged on.



### 2. Click New user

The New User & Passcode box will be displayed.

💋 Users -	Windows Internet Explorer					
00	<ul> <li>http://192.168.1.99/Configurat</li> </ul>	tion/Users.aspx			🗸 😽 🗙 🚰 Google	۶.
🔶 Favori	ites 🌈 Users				🚵 🔻 🔯 👻 🖃 👼 👻 Page 👻 Safety 🕶	Tools 🕶 🔞 🕶 🦥
Manage	r Overview	Alarms	Reports	Configuration	Print Help 11:22 26/9/2012	^
User	Manager - New use	Scuttes Demo SCUFF	LE L			
Name	Manager	Timeout 00:05:00		Logoff user Click to logon 💌	Signature • Ne	w signature
Home	Overview -	Mobile home Overview		<ul> <li>Show global alarm status</li> </ul>	Change password Remove	password
E-Mail		Telephone		Mobile phone		
Name Home E-Mail	Manager Overview	Timeout 00:05:00 Mobile home Overview Telephone		Logoff user Click to logon ▼ ■ Show global alarm status  ■ Mobile phone	Signature • N Change password Remove	w signature password

WEB: www.aawcs.co.uk EMAIL: aaw@aawcs.co.uk TEL: 01635 248589 FAX: 01635 897591

3.

### AAW Control Systems Limited

User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

Enter the new user's name, enter and re-enter their password, then click **Create User** 

The Users page will be updated with the settings for the new user.

New U	ser & Passcode	X
Jser	Security	
assword	••••	
Confirm password	••••	
	Create user	

4. Amend the settings for the new user - in particular giving them the approriate permissions, then click **Update** 

You will be prompted to enter the new user's password.

Cosers -	windows intern	et Explorer										0101	~
00	<ul> <li>http://1</li> </ul>	92.168.1.99/Configura	ation/Users.asp	ĸ					- 4 X	🛃 Google			- م
🚖 Favor	ites 🛛 🔏 Users								🖞 • 🔊	• 🖃 🖶 • <u>P</u> age •	Safety •	T <u>o</u> ols 🕶 🔞	• 35
Manage	er 🕨	Overview	AI	arms	Reports	→ Co	nfiguration	Pr	int Help	11:33 26	9/2012		^
User	Security	<ul> <li>New us</li> </ul>	er Scuffles	Demo SCUFFLE	4								
Name	Secur	ły	Timeout	00:05:00		Logoff user	Click to logon 👻		Signature	e	• Ne	w signature	
Home	Overview	•	Mobile home	Overview	•	Show global	alarm status 🗵		Chi	ange password	Remove	bassword	1
E-Mail			Telephone			Mobile phone							
						Role	\$						_
			User 📝	Manager 📃	Service	Supe	er 🛄						•
Chill Sto	re		1		1								
Trolley R	leturns		V									-	E
RIOT			1		1								
Chill Roo	om 1		V										-
Retail Pa	acking Room		V		1								
Chill Roo	om 7		V		1								
Offal Chi			V		1								
Loading	Bay Area		V		(	F							
Ammoni	a Compressors		1		1								
HACCPI	Probe				1								
SCUFFL	E 1		V		1								-
Update													
	-												
													Ŧ

#### 5. Enter the new user's password, then click Update

The text "User updated and will take effect at next log in" will be displayed next to the Update button.



User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

### Changing a User's Password

From time to time it may be necessary to change a user's password, for example if they've forgotten it or if they suspect that someone else has found out what it is.

### 1. Go to the *Configuration* menu and click **Users**

The Users page will be displayed showing the configuration settings for the user that is currently logged on.

AAW

**Control Systems** 



Name Manager Home Overvlew	Timeout     Mobile home     Telephone	00:05:00 Overview	- Show	off user Click to logon 👻	Signature	<ul> <li>New signature</li> </ul>
E-Mail	Mobile home     Telephone	Overview	<ul> <li>Show</li> </ul>			
z-Mail	Telephone			v giodai alarm státus 🗹	Change password	Remove password
			Mobi	le phone		
				Roles		
obill Ober	User 🗹	Manager 🗹	Service 📰	Super		â
Colley Returns						
NOT	<b>V</b>	<b>V</b>				1
bill Room 1						
etail Packing Room						
chill Room 7						
fal Chill	V	<b>V</b>				
oading Bay Area	V	V				
mmonia Compressors	V	V				
IACCP Probe	V	<b>V</b>				
CUFFLE 1	V	V				

2. Select the user whose password you need to change.
**AAW Control Systems Limited** WEB: www.aawcs.co.uk EMAIL: aaw@aawcs.co.uk User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4 TEL: 01635 248589 FAX: 01635 897591 G - thtp://192.168.1.9 🔹 👍 🗙 🚼 Google 📴 🔹 🖾 👻 🗁 👼 👻 Bage 🔹 Safety 👻 Tgols 👻 🚷 🖬 int Help 4:31 15/9/2012 🔏 Us New user Scuttes Cornwall SCUFFLE : Timeout 00:05:00 Logoff user Click to logon 👻 New signature Mobile home Overview Show global alarm status 📝 Change password Remove password Mobile phone Telephone 3. If prompted, re-enter your user name and password then click Select user This is required for additional security to make sure that user settings aren't amended without the proper authority. User Manager ... Password Select user 4. Click Remove password The text "User updated and will take effect at next log in" will be displayed next to the Update button. 🏉 Users - Windows Internet Explore 😋 🕞 🗢 🖻 http://192.168. - 4 × 🛃 👌 • 🖻 • 🗈 Alarms 4:31 15/9/2012 New user Scuttle 00:05:00 New signature Logoffuser Click to logon 👻 Home Mobile home Overview Show global alarm status Change pa ord Rem 6 ird E-Mai Telephone Mobile phone Trolley Return RIOT Chill Room 1 8 Retail Packing F Chill Room 7 Offal Chill Loading Bay Area Ammonia Compre Ammonia C HACCP Pro SCUFFLE 1 Update Note: If you know the existing password, then you can change it without needing to remove the password first - see step 5 below. You will, however, need to enter both the existing password and the new password into the Change Password box - see step 6

### 5. Click Change password

below.

The Change Password box will be displayed.

🏉 Users -	Windows Internet Exp	lorer							
00	<ul> <li>http://192.168</li> </ul>	1.1.99/Configuration/Users.aspx				•	🍫 🗙 🚼 Goo	gle	, م
🚖 Favori	ites 🏾 🏉 Users					<u>à</u>	• 🔊 • 🖬 (	🖶 👻 Page 👻 Safety 🕶	Tgols 🕶 🔞 🖛 🎽
Manage	er Ov	erview Alar	ms Re	eports Co	onfiguration	Print	Help	14:59 25/9/2012	^
User	User	New user Scuttes	emo SCUFFLE 📑 🚦						
Name	User	Timeout	0:05:00	Logoffuser	Click to logon 👻		Signature	• N	ew signature
Home	Overview	<ul> <li>Mobile home</li> </ul>	Dverview	<ul> <li>Show global</li> </ul>	alarm status 🗵		Changepas	sword Remove	password
E-Mail		Telephone		Mobile phone	Þ				

AAW	Control Systems Limited		
User M	anual: WebREACT Software version 4		AAW Control Systems
6.	Leave the existing password blank (as it was removed in above), enter and re-enter the new password, then click Update password	step 4 <	
	The text "User updated and will take effect at next log in" will again be displate to the Update button.	ayed next	
	User User Existing password New password Confirm password Update password		

7. Check that the user is able to log on with their new password.

## AAW Control Systems Limited

#### User Manual: WebREACT Software version 4

### Hardware Maintenance

For your WebREACT system to work correctly, it is essential that your temperature-monitoring hardware is also working correctly. To achieve this we recommend the following regular maintenance and testing:

Hardware	Recommended maintenance			
RIOT	Put the unit into alarm e.g. by spiking a sensor*, every month			
RIOT-S	Put the unit into alarm e.g. by spiking a sensor*, <b>every month</b> Replace the back-up batteries <b>every 12 months</b>			
RIOT-S Interface Board	Spike at least one sensor* on the board <b>every month</b>			
RIOT-S Expansion Board	Spike at a least one sensor* on the board <b>every month</b>			
Wired sensor	Spike the sensor* at least once <b>every 6 months</b> Calibrate <b>every 12 months</b>			
Wireless IT Radio Sensor	Spike the sensor* at least once <b>every 6 months</b> Calibrate the sensor <b>every 12 months</b> Replace the batteries <b>every 12 months</b> Replace the IP68 waterproof sleeve (if fitted) <b>every 12 months</b>			
IT Radio Repeater	Visually check the LCD screen to make sure the unit is working <b>every 3</b> months			

\* Spiking a sensor means getting it to read a value that is different to its normal operating conditions. For a sensor that's monitoring the temperature in a fridge, this could be achieved by simply holding the sensor in your hand.

# AAW Control Systems Limited

WEB: www.aawcs.co.uk EMAIL: aaw@aawcs.co.uk TEL: 01635 248589 FAX: 01635 897591

Unit 10 Langley Business Court, Beedon Newbury, Berkshire, RG20 8RY